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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EFRES

For the year ended 31 March 2008, the Group's revenue was
HK$129,582,000 and its net loss attributable to equity holders
of the Company was HK$12,854,000.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

For the year under review, the Group's core businesses were
on the supply and procurement business in the Asia Pacific
Region and securities investment. Due to keen competition
in sourcing business and the downturn of global economy
with concerns about the impact of sub-prime crisis and
worldwide inflationary pressures, the revenue and profit of
the supply and procurement business decreased by 33.2% to
HK$129,582,000 and dropped by 45.3% to HK$11,598,000
respectively as compared to that of last year. For securities
investment, which was mainly in large capitalization H-shares
and blue chips, net loss of HK$3,600,000 was recorded for
the year under review.

Riding on the rapid development of the economy and local
tourism industry in the People's Republic of China ("PRC"), the
Board considers that there will be more travellers and tourists
in the PRC and thereby increasing demand for hotel services.
The Group, on 5 September 2007, entered into a conditional
joint venture agreement (as supplemented on 3 December
2007) with independent third parties for the establishment
of a joint venture company in the PRC which would be
principally engaged in the operation of budget hotels in the
PRC. In view of that not all the conditions of the joint venture
agreement could be fulfilled on or before the specified date,
the agreement was terminated on 3 March 2008. For details,
please refer to the Company’s announcements dated 13
September 2007, 3 December 2007 and 3 March 2008 and
the circular of the Company dated 4 October 2007.
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On 28 November 2007, the Company entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with an independent third party to
dispose of its entire equity interest in a group of subsidiaries,
whose principal assets are the land and buildings located
in Dongguan, Guangdong Province, the PRC. Details of the
transaction were summarized in the Company's circular dated
12 December 2007.

PROSPECTS

In order to accelerate the Group’s growth and improve its
profitability, the Board is actively seeking new opportunities
to place the Group on the path to steady growth as well as
any opportunities of obtaining long term equity financing to
strengthen the Group's capital base.

Due to the continuous high rise of petroleum and its related
products over years, the Group, in May 2008, entered into a
memorandum of understanding (“MOU") in relation to the
possible acquisition of 15% equity interest in a company
engaged in the business of exploitation and extraction of oil
in the PRC. Pursuant to the MOU, the Group has options to
acquire the remaining 85% equity interest in the oil company.
For details, please refer to the Company's announcement
dated 26 May 2008.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the board, | would like to take this opportunity
to thank our staff for their diligence, dedication and loyalty
towards the Group, and to our shareholders, investors and
other business partners for their support over the past year.

Suen Cho Hung, Paul
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 July 2008
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEE RS T

RESULTS

The Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 March 2008
was HK$129,582,000, representing a decrease of 33.20%
as compared to that of last year (2007: HK$193,989,000).
The decrease in revenue was due to keen competition in
sourcing business and the downturn of global economy. Loss
attributable to equity holders of the Company amounted to
HK$12,854,000 (2007: HK$7,904,000), which included a
provision of HK$6,478,000 for impairment of goodwill.

CHARGE ON THE GROUP’S ASSETS

As at the balance sheet date, there were no investment
properties or prepaid land lease payments pledged to
secure bank borrowing advanced to the Group (2007:
HK$17,769,000).

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2008, the Group's total indebtedness
comprised only convertible notes of HK$69,074,000 which
would be repayable within two years. The convertible
notes were interest-free and denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. As at 31 March 2007, the total indebtedness was
HK$32,259,000, including interest-bearing borrowings, loan
from a minority shareholder and convertible notes. They
were at fixed interest rates or interest-free and denominated
in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi or Singapore dollars. As at
31 March 2008, the Group had current ratio of 6.52 (2007:
1.00) based on current assets of HK$290,823,000 and
current liabilities of HK$44,604,000.

As at 31 March 2008, the Group had neither unutilised
banking facilities nor any hedging financial instruments. The
Group’s net current assets were HK$246,219,000 (2007:
HK$336,000) and its gearing ratio (total indebtedness divided
by total indebtedness and total equity) was 0.28 as at balance
sheet date (2007: 0.45).

On 20 June 2007, the Company entered into (i) a conditional
placing agreement with Interchina Securities Limited in relation
to placing, on a best effort basis, of the Company’s convertible
notes (“Convertible Notes”) up to HK$100,000,000; and (ii)
a conditional option agreement with Vision Century Group
Limited (“Vision Century”) to subscribe for convertible notes
(“New Vision Century Notes”) up to HK$100,000,000. The
initial conversion price for both convertible notes is HK$0.28
per share. For details, please refer to the Company's circular
dated 19 July 2007.
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On 17 September 2007, the Company issued the Convertible
Notes in the aggregate principal amount of HK$40,000,000
to six subscribers and the New Vision Century Notes in the
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 to Vision Century. On 18
September 2007, all these convertible notes were converted
into 285,714,283 shares. Details of the transactions were
summarized in the Company's announcements dated 17
September 2007 and 19 September 2007.

On 7 November 2007, the Company issued the Convertible
Notes in the aggregate principal amount of HK$60,000,000
to ten subscribers and the New Vision Century Notes in
the principal amount of HK$60,000,000 to Vision Century.
Conversions of aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000
of the Convertible Notes and HK$30,000,000 of the New
Vision Century Notes into 35,714,285 shares and 107,142,857
shares took place on 8 November 2007 and 17 January 2008
respectively. Details of the transactions were summarized in
the Company's announcements dated 6 December 2007 and
17 January 2008.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, the issued share capital of the
Company has increased as follows:

0 Exercise of share options granted to directors

In April and May 2007, certain directors of the Group
exercised their share options at an exercise price of
HK$0.23 per share and 4,096,000 new shares were
issued.

(i) Conversion of convertible notes

In April and July 2007, convertible notes in the principal
amount of HK$7,126,560 and HK$17,000,000 were
converted at conversion price of HK$0.17 per share
and HK$0.141 per share into 41,920,941 shares and
120,567,375 shares respectively.
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(iiiy ~ Conversion of the Convertible Notes and the New
Vision Century Notes

In September 2007, several conversions of aggregate
principal amount of HK$80,000,000 of the Convertible
Notes and the New Vision Century Notes (issued on 17
September 2007) took place, resulting in the issue of
285,714,283 shares at the conversion price of HK$0.28
per share.

In November 2007, several conversions of aggregate
principal amount of HK$10,000,000 of the Convertible
Notes (issued on 7 November 2007) took place,
resulting in the issue of 35,714,285 shares at the
conversion price of HK$0.28 per share.

In January 2008, a conversion of principal amount
of HK$30,000,000 of the New Vision Century Notes
(issued on 7 November 2007) took place, resulting
in the issue of 107,142,857 shares at the conversion
price of HK$0.28 per share.

Consequent to the aforesaid events, the issued share capital
of the Company has increased by HK$5,952,000 (represented
by 595,155,741 shares) to HK$10,699,000 (represented by
1,069,863,767 shares).

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

On 30 April 2008, 64,120,000 share options were granted to
certain staff, directors and consultants of the Company. Among
which, 6,208,000 share options were exercised in May 2008.

In May 2008, the Company received three conversion
notices for conversions of aggregate principal amount of
HK$17,500,000 of the Convertible Notes (issued on 7
November 2007), resulting in the issue of 62,499,999 shares
at the conversion price of HK$0.28 per share. As at the date of
this report, there is an outstanding balance of HK$32,500,000
of the Convertible Notes.

On 22 May 2008, the holder of the New Vision Century
Notes exercised its right to convert the remaining balance of
HK$30,000,000 of the New Vision Century Notes (issued on
7 November 2007) into 107,142,857 shares at the conversion
price of HK$0.28 per share.
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The Group, on 26 May 2008, entered into a MOU in
relation to the possible acquisition of 15% equity interest
in a company engaged in the business of exploitation and
extraction of oil in the PRC. Pursuant to the MOU, the Group
has options to acquire the remaining 85% equity interest in
the oil company. For details, please refer to the Company’s
announcement dated 26 May 2008.

On 15 July 2008, the Board announced that it proposes to
change the official registered English name of the Company
from “Xin Corporation Limited” to “Poly Development Holdings
Limited” (the “Change of English Name”) and, upon the
Change of English Name becoming effective, to adopt the
new Chinese name "(REZEEIZFRABR A" to replace the
existing Chinese name of the Company "¥TEIfRATEBR
2 A]" for identification only. The Change of English Name
shall be subject to, (i) the passing of a special resolution
by the shareholders of the Company at the 2008 annual
general meeting of the Company; and (ii) the approval by
the Registrar of Companies in Bermuda. Further details are
contained in the Company's announcement dated 15 July
2008.

EXPOSURE ON EQUITY PRICE RISK AND FOREIGN
CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from
individual equity investments classified as trading equity
investments. The Group's listed investments are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange and are valued at quoted market
prices at the balance sheet date.

All borrowings of the Group are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, management closely monitors foreign
exchange exposure and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2008, the Group employed a total of 10
employees, among which, 5 staff were based in Hong

Kong, 3 were based in the PRC and 2 were in Singapore.
Remuneration packages are structured by reference to
market terms and individual performance. Staff benefits plans
maintained by the Group include mandatory provident fund
scheme, medical insurance and discretionary bonuses.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul, Chairman

Aged 47, Mr. Suen joined the Company as an executive
director and the Chairman of the Company in November
2007 and is also a director of various members of the Group.
Mr. Suen holds a Master of Business Administration degree
from the University of South Australia. Mr. Suen has over 15
years of experience in international trading of metals, minerals
and raw materials, manufacturing of metal products, property
investment as well as management and corporate planning of
industrial enterprises in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). Mr. Suen is a substantial shareholder of the Company
as disclosed in the section headed “Substantial shareholders'’
and other persons’ interests in shares and underlying shares”
in the Report of the Directors.

Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles, J.P, Deputy Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and the chairman of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 58, Mr. Lo joined the Company as an executive director
and the Chairman of the Company in December 2000 and
has been re-designated as the Deputy Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company in November 2007.
Mr. Lo is also a director of various members of the Group.
Mr. Lo is a Certified Practising Accountant of the CPA Australia
and an associate member of the Financial Services Institute
of Australasia. Mr. Lo has over 32 years of professional and
business experience in financial and investment services in
Australia, Hong Kong and other Asian countries.

Mr. Yu Wai Man, Company Secretary, Qualified Accountant and
member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 43, Mr. Yu joined the Company as the company
secretary and qualified accountant in December 2000 and was
appointed as an executive director in April 2001. Mr. Yu is also
a director of various members of the Group. Mr. Yu is a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Mr. Yu has over 23 years of experience in the accounting
field, including 3 years in external audit and 2 years in internal
audit. Mr. Yu has over 15 years of financial experience in
companies listed both in Hong Kong and the United Kingdom.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)
Mr. Zhang Zhidong

Aged 45, Mr. Zhang joined the Company as an executive
director in October 2007. Mr. Zhang graduated from Liaoning
College of Finance and Economics (ZEEEF4EE8T) (currently
known as Dongbei University of Finance and Economics) with
a Bachelor of Economics degree and majoring in accounting.
Mr. Zhang has over 20 years of experience in financial
and corporate management of government authorities and
enterprises in the PRC. Prior to joining the Company, Mr.
Zhang was the chairman of the board of directors and general
manager of a four star hotel in the PRC.

Mr. Sue Ka Lok

Aged 43, Mr. Sue joined the Company as an executive director
in November 2007 and is also a director of various members
of the Group. Mr. Sue graduated from the University of
Sydney, Australia with a Bachelor of Economics degree and
holds a Master of Science in Finance degree from the City
University of Hong Kong. Mr. Sue is a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and a member
of the Hong Kong Securities Institute. Mr. Sue has extensive
experience in corporate management, finance, accounting and
company secretarial practice.
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Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Chairman of the Audit Committee and
member of the Remuneration Committee

Aged 69, Mr. Wong joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in August 2001. Mr. Wong is a
Practising Certified Public Accountant and a fellow member
of the CPA Australia and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Wong has more than 43 years of
financial experience. Mr. Wong is the principal of W. Wong &
Co., CPA.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

Mr. Weng Yixiang, Member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 49, Mr. Weng joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in October 2007. Mr. Weng graduated
from China Central Radio and TV University specializing in law
and is also qualified as a senior economist in the PRC. Mr.
Weng has over 20 years of experience in banking, investment
and finance and had served as senior executive in government
authorities and financial institutions in the PRC. Mr. Weng
is the general manager of an investment management and
consulting company in the PRC.

Mr. Lu Xinsheng, Member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 41, Mr. Lu joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in October 2007. Mr. Lu graduated
from Sichuan University with a Bachelor of Science degree
specializing in environmental chemistry. Mr. Lu has over 20
years of experience in trading business and has held senior
positions in trading and logistics companies in the PRC.

Mr. Xiong Wei, Member of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee

Aged 34, Mr. Xiong joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in October 2007. Mr. Xiong graduated
from Chongging Workers and Staff Members College (& E T
B T K2)specializing in economics management. Mr. Xiong
has over 15 years of experience of advertising and public
communication and has held senior positions in advertising
and media companies in the PRC.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2008.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Company are investment
holdings and securities investment. Details of the principal
activities of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to
the financial statements.

RESULTS

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 March 2008 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date

are set out in the financial statements on pages 37 to 144.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results and assets, liabilities and minority
interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the published audited financial statements,
is set out below. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued) B E RREE ()
RESULTS #E

Year ended 31 March
BEZA=t-HLEE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
“EENE ZETtF ZTTRF ZITTERF ZTEEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

— FEx FHET FHET FHET FAT
—
CONTINUING OPERATIONS &£
I |
Revenue N 129,582 193,989 155,550 144,687 -
Profit/(loss) before tax BREATEF (BE)  (9,486) 3,643 693 (5,807) (13,182)
—_—— Tax 1A (655) (3,553) (3,172) (1,608) -
_—
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE BESEERK
m—
YEAR FROM CONTINUING REERHN,/
——_—— i
OPERATIONS (BB (10,141) 90 (2,479) (7.415) (13,182)
——
— DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS T#& IS %%
—
—— Loss for the year from BRIERER
discontinued operations ZRFEEE - - (7.855) (1,717) (16,868)
—_—
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR REERR,
THE YEAR (B#E) (10,141) 90 (10,334) (9,132) (30,050)
—_—
—— e Attributable to: AT ARG
e — EqUIty hOlderS Of the Z’S/AETEEE
—— Company BEHA (12,854) (7.904) (15,994) (12,047) (30,575)
Minority interests DR 2,713 7,994 5,660 2,915 525
-

(10,141) 90 (10,334) (9,132)  (30,050)
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (continued) B 7% & RS S ()
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND MINORITY INTERESTS EEHEERIDHBREREDS
Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1t-HLHFE
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
ZBEN\F —TTHH —TTRFE —TTRF _TTWF S
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FET FET FET FET —
Total assets BEE 290,849 166,931 118,007 139,472 89,383
Total liabilities BaE (113,678)  (128,178)  (110,524)  (134,027) (95,696)
Minority interests DY R (608) (688) (9,607) (2,395) 520
176,563 38,065 (2,124) 3,050 (5,793) e p—
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INVESTMENT _
PROPERTIES NE BERRBERREWE —
Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment AR BIRAEEWE HELREBLRED R
and investment properties of the Company and of the Group ~ X F R Z Z B F 157 5l #7108 % Mk I 5
during the year are set out in notes 13 and 14 to the financial 1314 °
statements, respectively.
SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND CONVERTIBLE NOTES RZ& - BRER IBREBFE ——
Details of movements in the Company's share capital, share ~ F R AR F ZIRA - A K Al #fk R & -—
options and convertible notes during the year, together with SEFIBERGEARE D REH N MK REK —
the reasons therefore, are set out in notes 32, 33 and 30 to FI3E32 ~ 3330 °
the financial statements, respectively.
PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS BErEERE o
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the ARFZARMAHAFRE-NN—FLQF
Company's bye-laws or the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda AW EABELEER BT WARRH _
which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a  ZEIRLL I EF IR FHE AR - ——
pro rata basis to existing shareholders.
PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE COMPANY’'S

LISTED SECURITIES

BE EOfHEFQF LHES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year.

ARAHZEEMBARMERFABE |
Bk HERARER LEHES -

e
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RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and

of the Group during the year are set out in note 34(b) to
the financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2008, the Company had no reserves available
for distribution and/or distribution in specie as computed
in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
The Company's share premium account, in the amount of
HK$186,571,000, may be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year under review, sales to the Group's five largest
customers accounted for approximately 100% of the total
sales for the year and sales to the largest customer included
therein accounted for approximately 98%. Purchases from
the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
4200 of the total purchases for the year and purchases
from the largest supplier included therein accounted for
approximately 15%.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company's issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group's five
largest customers or suppliers during the year.
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DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive directors:

Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul (appointed as executive director
and Chairman on 20 November
2007)

Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles (re-designated from Chairman
to Deputy Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer on 20
November 2007)

Mr. Yu Wai Man

Mr. Zhang Zhidong (appointed on 15 October 2007)

Mr. Sue Ka Lok (appointed on 20 November 2007)

Mr. Wilson Ng (resigned on 25 October 2007)

Mr. Ng Wee Keat (resigned on 20 November 2007)

Mr. Ng Eng Leng (resigned on 20 November 2007)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Wong Kwok Tai
Mr. Weng Yixiang (appointed on 15 October 2007)

Mr. Lu Xinsheng (appointed on 25 October 2007)

Mr. Xiong Wei (appointed on 25 October 2007)

Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan (resigned on 15 October 2007)

Mr. Lau Pok Lam (resigned on 25 October 2007)

In accordance with bye-law 86(2) of the Company's bye-
laws, Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul, Mr. Zhang Zhidong, Mr. Sue Ka
Lok, Mr. Weng Yixiang, Mr. Lu Xinsheng and Mr. Xiong Wei will
hold office until the forthcoming annual general meeting (the
"AGM") and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the AGM.
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In accordance with bye-law 87 of the Company's bye-laws, Mr.
Lo Ming Chi, Charles will retire by rotation at the AGM and,
being eligible, offer himself for re-election at the AGM.

The Company has received annual confirmations of
independence from Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr. Weng Yixiang,
Mr. Lu Xinsheng and Mr. Xiong Wei, and as at the date of this
report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set

out on pages 10 to 12 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the AGM has a service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at

general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company's board of directors with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 39 to the financial statements, no

director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its holding companies,
subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries was a party during the
year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES EENROREERO I EER KA
As at 31 March 2008, the interests and short positions of the RZZEZENF=ZA=+—08 EFRNARF
directors in the share capital and underlying shares of the S{HMEE *E (FTERELFRBEEH ([&
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning % R EAE &M ) SEXVED) 2 B 7S & 48 B8 B 1n
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the H#EAERIEFES MEEIEHIEI52(68E 5
“SFO")), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the ~ RZARQARFHFE 2 S MA IR %A - —_—
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise S iE1E F T AR EZTEITEAL HHIZESE —
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Bl ([{Z2%<FR|) ZHEMABAME R RQ T K
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model FHEBAXLZHAR AT ([BAT]) 2 #
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers — zZE MA 2T :
(the “Model Code"), were as follows:
Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company: REAFTEBERZ2EFE —
Number of Percentage of the ’
Capacity and ordinary Company'’s issued ;
nature of interest shares held share capital
EARRRE #IT —_—
SO RERME g EREE RAZBEDLE T
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul Interest held by 250,038,143 23.37 ——
controlled corporation (Note 1)
HIEFIEE RSB 2 s (Kiat1)
—
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles Directly beneficially owned 1,000,000 0.09 _—
HEEEHER -_——
Long positions in a convertible note of the Company: REARTRBRRBZER R
Number of Percentage of the
Capacity and underlying Company'’s issued
nature of interest shares held share capital
EARRARE #IT s——
SO RERNE B ROEE [ A= —_—
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul Interest held by 107,142,857 10.02
controlled corporation (Note 2)
HIEHIEE B 2 s (Kat2)
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES (continued)

Notes:

1. These shares are held by Global Wealthy Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of Excelsior Kingdom Limited, which in turn
is wholly owned by Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul.

2. This represents the interest of Global Wealthy Limited in
107,142,857 underlying shares through the convertible note
issued by the Company to it in the principal amount of
HK$30,000,000 which can be converted into 107,142,857
shares at an initial conversion price of HK$0.28 per share

(subject to adjustments).

In addition to the above, as at 31 March 2008, a director
has a non-beneficial personal equity interest in a subsidiary
held for the benefit of the Company solely for the purpose
of complying with the minimum company membership
requirements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, none of the
directors had registered an interest or short positions in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company or any of its
associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’

interests and
short positions in shares and underlying shares” above and
in the share option scheme disclosures in note 33 to the
financial statements, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any director or their
respective spouse or minor children, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company
or any of its subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

EERRORMEERO 2EZRKXR
(#&)
or

1. I % % 19 B Global Wealthy Limited#¥
A ' Global Wealthy LimitedJ5Excelsior
Kingdom Limitedz 2 &K & 2 7 - ﬁ'ﬁ
Excelsior Kingdom Limited8ll i F& #8456
2EER -

2. it Jh#5Global Wealthy LimitediZ i H & 74
A B 17 AN £ 58 A30,000,0008 7T 2 7]
A% Z 98 1 107,142,857 8 HE B8 B 15 P
BBEZEZ ZEURREETZRDNS
HBMETRO28F L (I FTHE) LA
107,142,857 B %15 »

RZTBZNF=ZA=+—8 " B EXFlE
Gh e —BEBEERARR ZFERN —HERBER
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PIE3521% A TRk 2 RIOA R - HRE
IRAESFRIZ FRE MR EANR R LR PTZ
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B EX B SR R AE B A 2 8 a8 ok
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Details of the share option scheme of the Company are set

out in note 33 to the financial statements.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2008, the following interests of 5% or more
of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded in
the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:
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FB I fE 5T &

BREAARERESE ZFBIHNIBIHRE
f3E33 ©

FERRRHEMALTRRMG R AHRBR®G
2R

R-ZETZNF=ZA=1t—8 REFHFLH
EIRPIEIZGRERARRAFEZRAE
Efticsk - A TBEREAARA D HITRA
5%38k bA L HE R

Long positions: LT
Percentage
of the
Capacity and Number of Company'’s Number of
nature of ordinary issued underlying
Name interest shares held share capital shares held
Fr¥s HAQTE BT Fifs1EE
HmE B RESNE ZEREE RAB L KRG EE
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul Interest held 250,038,143 23.37 107,142,857
Bt SE by controlled (Note 1) (Note 2)
corporation (Hiat1) (Hfat2)
HIEFIEERFE
Z M
Excelsior Kingdom Interest held 250,038,143 23.37 107,142,857
Limited by controlled (Note 1) (Note 2)
corporation (Hiat1) (Hfat2)
HIEFIEERFE
Z M
Global Wealthy Limited Directly 250,038,143 23.37 107,142,857
benefically owned (Note 1) (Note 2)
BEEERER (Brat1) (KiaE2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(continued)

Notes:

1. These shares are held by Global Wealthy Limited, which is
a wholly owned subsidiary of Excelsior Kingdom Limited
which in turn is wholly-owned by Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul.
Accordingly, Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul and Excelsior Kingdom
Limited were deemed to be interested in 250,038,143 shares
under the SFO.

2. This represents the interest of Global Wealthy Limited in
107,142,857 underlying shares through the convertible note
issued by the Company to it in the principal amount of
HK$30,000,000 which can be converted into 107,142,857
shares at an initial conversion price of HK$0.28 per share
(subject to adjustments).

There is a duplication of interests of 250,038,143 shares and
107,142,857 underlying shares in the Company between Mr.
Suen Cho Hung, Paul, Excelsior Kingdom Limited and Global
Wealthy Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2008, no person,
other than the directors and chief executive of the Company,
whose interests are set out in the section "Directors’ interests
and short positions in shares and underlying shares” above,
had registered an interest or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

FTERREEMATRRG RBER®G
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1. It % B% 19 B Global Wealthy Limited#¥
& ' Global Wealthy LimitedJyExcelsior
Kingdom Limitedz 2 &M E A F - M
Excelsior Kingdom Limited BIl f 748 34 56 4
2EEE - Bt RIBEF LB &N
TR R 58 A& R Excelsior Kingdom Limited %
18 /%6 250,038, 143 R 15 2 #e s -

2. Itk Jh #5Global Wealthy Limitedi# i@ £ 7 7K
X A % 17 7K € 58 /430,000,000 T 2 7]
A% Z 55 M A107,142,8570% 48 B8 % 1)
RBEZHEZ ZEUHRREENRDNS
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CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company and the Group had the
following connected and continuing connected transactions,
certain details of which are disclosed in compliance with
the requirements of Chapter 14A of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules").

(@) On 20 February 2004, the Group entered into a
shareholders’ agreement (the “Xin Procurement
Agreement”) with Huang & Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.
("HCSPL"), a company incorporated in Singapore with
limited liability, to form Xin Procurement & Trading Pte.
Ltd. (“Xin Procurement”), a company incorporated in
Singapore with limited liability. HCSPL is wholly-owned
by New Century International Pte. Ltd. ("New Century
International”), a company incorporated in Singapore
with limited liability. New Century International is in turn
wholly-owned by the parents of Mr. Wilson Ng and Mr.
Ng Wee Keat, both are the ex-executive directors of the
Company and directors of HCSPL. Pursuant to the Xin
Procurement Agreement, the Group and HCSPL owned
51% and 49% of equity interests in Xin Procurement,
respectively.

On 28 February 2007, the Group acquired an additional
24% interest in Xin Procurement and the rights of
and benefits in a shareholder's loan of S$120,000
(equivalent to HK$618,000) from HCSPL, at a
consideration of HK$7,126,560 (the "Acquisition”).
Upon completion of the Acquisition, the Group holds
75% interest in Xin Procurement and HCSPL holds the
remaining 25% interest therein. The consideration of
the Acquisition was settled by issuing a 1% convertible
note of principal amount of HK$7,126,560 by the
Company to HCSPL.
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CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(a

(continued)

By virtue of the interests of the parents of Mr. Wilson
Ng and Mr. Ng Wee Keat, who had been the directors
of the Company up to their resignation on 25 October
2007 and 20 November 2007, respectively, in HCSPL,
the Acquisition constituted a connected transaction of
the Company under the Listing Rules, details of which
have been disclosed in the Company's circular dated
29 January 2007.

On 20 February 2004, Xin Procurement entered into
a supply agreement (the “Supply Agreement”) with
HCSPL whereby Xin Procurement has been appointed
as a supplier to HCSPL for the supply of certain office
equipment and office supplies, machinery, machinery
parts, lubricating oil and bunkerage.

The contract terms have been reviewed by the
executive directors of the Company, who consider that
the transactions were: (i) in the ordinary and usual
course of the business of the Group; (ii) in the interests
of the Company; and (iii) on normal commercial terms
that are fair and reasonable as far as the shareholders
of the Company are concerned. By virtue of the
interests of the parents of Mr. Wilson Ng and Mr. Ng
Wee Keat in HCSPL, the transactions contemplated
under the Supply Agreement constituted continuing
connected transactions of the Company under the
Listing Rules, details of which have been disclosed
in the Company’s circular dated 12 March 2004. The
continuing connected transactions were approved by
independent shareholders of the Company on the
special general meeting held on 29 March 2004 with
an annual cap of S$7.5 million (approximately HK$34.5
million) for each of the three financial years ended 31
March 2007. During the year, Xin Procurement made
sales to HCSPL amounting to HK$3,000.
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TRANSACTIONS (continued) RERBEBERS (&)

(b)  On 30 March 2006, the Company issued a convertible (b)) R-ZZTERF=A=+H ARF
note in the principal amount of HK$37,000,000, as B 17 7/~ & $837,000,000/% JT 2 7] #&
part of the consideration for the release and discharge BREE ERERERRAEE
of the Group from all of its obligations and liabilities Vision Century Group Limited ([ Vision
in respect of a loan advanced by Vision Century Centuryl) FTB N B AE 2 — )
Group Limited (“Vision Century”), who had been the EEREBEZHDRKME - MVision
Company's then immediate holding company prior CentuyR —ZEZ+F+—-H - +H
to 20 November 2007. Vision Century has the right FISARBERZEBERAT -
to convert the outstanding principal amount of the Vision CenturyB N —ZT T NF =
convertible note into shares at any time before 29 AZ TN BRIBER G AT R R IR 4
March 2009 at the initial conversion price of HK$0.205 ZERTHERVTBBRET R BERK
per conversion share, which was adjusted to HK$0.141 70.205 8 TR R H - MBRAXE
per conversion share to reflect the Company’'s open ERAEREERABRMI4ET
offer made on 16 October 2006. The convertible note UERBR_-_ZFZTRF+TA T BE
carries interest at a rate of 1% per annum, which is TRZARALFEE AT BRREE
payable semi-annually in arrears on 31 March and 30 RENE-EFE EAREF=A
September. Vision Century converted HK$10,000,000, —t+—BRERANA=Z+HEFXFIH
HK$10,000,000 and HK$7,000,000 of the convertible B 2 1 — X © Vision Century2 % 5l
note into ordinary shares of the Company on 1 March RZZFZA+F=A—H ZTZLF
2007, 5 March 2007 and 26 July 2007, respectively. On ZAEARZEELFELAZFTR
27 July 2007, Vision Century transferred the remaining H # 410,000,000/ 7T ~ 10,000,000
HK$10,000,000 of the convertible note to three 7 7T K%.7,000,000/% T 2 A 2 % = &
independent third parties, who fully converted their RARNBEBR N _ZTTLFLA
convertible note into ordinary shares of the Company Z-++H - Vision Century7NgEER T
on 30 July 2007. 10,000,000/ 7T 2 Al # R =18 T =L

BUE=F BRER_ZETLFLA
“tHERSHTHRRERZHERR
RRAFIZ EBRERG -

(c)  Pursuant to the Xin Procurement Agreement, HCSPL ~ (c)  #R#EXin Procurement & - HCSPL®

had advanced funds to Xin Procurement as the working
capital and the loan from HCSPL was HK$644,000
as at 31 March 2007. The Group has fully repaid
such amount to HCSPL during the year. The terms of
the advance are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.

f1& 4 FXin Procurement{E &4 B &
K- RZEZTE+F=/A=+—8"
HCSPLIZ # 2 B 5K %644,000/% 7T °
FAN AEBC2HEEZEENRT
HCSPL #3027 1§ 51 8 7 B 7% T = I
FI28 e
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CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(d) During the year, Xin Procurement repaid
HK$21,200,000 to HCSPL. At 31 March 2008, the
outstanding balance owed by Xin Procurement to
HCSPL amounted to HK$34,255,000, including
dividend payable of HK$20,614,000, which is
unsecured, interest-free and has no fixed terms of
repayment.
- (e) During the year, a management fee of HK$636,000
B was charged by HCSPL in respect of certain
administrative services rendered to the Group. The
management fee was determined between the Group
and HCSPL.
= ® During the year, Huang Procurement Pte. Ltd., a wholly-
_— owned subsidiary of HCSPL, paid HK$41,121,000 to
— certain of the Group's suppliers on behalf of the Group
— in respect of its purchases of office equipment and
office supplies, machinery, machinery parts, lubricating
oil and bunkerage.
- 1 Save as disclosed above, there are no transactions which
— would need to be disclosed as connected and continuing
_— connected transactions in accordance with the requirements
. of the Listing Rules.
DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year and up to the date of this report, no directors
S . were considered to have an interest in a business which
I competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
_— with the businesses of the Group, as defined in the Listing
_— Rules, other than those businesses of which the directors of

the Company were appointed as directors to represent the
interests of the Company and/or the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company

and within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the
Company's total issued share capital was held by the public as
at the date of this report.

BEREEBRERS (&)

(d) %A Xin Procurement(&#21,200,000
HBITTHCSPLe RZZEZENF = A
=+ —H ' Xin Procurement# X
HCSPLZ 4 # %34,255,000/%8 7T * &
& FE 1+ 1% £.20,614,0008 T * 2 E X
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&1 AR 7 W B E IR 636,000 IT
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POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheet events of the

Group are set out in note 42 to the financial statements.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Suen Cho Hung, Paul
Chairman

Hong Kong
25 July 2008
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The Board of Directors (the “Board”) is committed to
maintaining high standards of corporate governance practices
at all times. The Board believes that good corporate
governance helps the Company to safeguard the interests
of its shareholders and to enhance the performance of the
Group.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Exg([EFg]) HER NI FaKkEZ
TEERFR BEZRERUZLEENR

i

R

The Board has adopted the principles and complied all the
applicable provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the "Code") as set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) for the year ended
31 March 2008, except for a deviation as specified with
considered reason for such deviation as explained below.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the directors of
the Company. Having made specific enquiry of all directors of
the Company, all of them confirmed that they have complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the
Company. The Board reviews and approves the objectives,
strategies, direction and policies of the Group, the annual
budget, annual and interim results, the management structure
of the Company as well as other significant policy and financial
matters. The Board has delegated the responsibility of the
day-to-day operations of the Group to the management of the
Company.
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As at the date of this report, the Board comprises nine
Directors, five of which are Executive Directors, namely
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul (Chairman), Mr. Lo Ming Chi,
Charles (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer), Mr.
Yu Wai Man, Mr. Zhang Zhidong and Mr. Sue Ka Lok; and
four are Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Kwok Tai, Mr. Weng Yixiang, Mr. Lu Xinsheng and Mr.
Xiong Wei. The Company has received from each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors an annual confirmation
of his independence pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers all the Independent Non-
executive Directors to be independent in accordance with
the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
Biographical details of the Directors are set out under the
section headed “Directors’ Biographies” on pages 10 to 12 of
this annual report.

During the year, four full board meetings were held and the
attendance of each Director is set out as follows:

Number of
Executive Directors attendance
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul (Chairman) 1/4
(appointed on 20 November 2007)
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles 4/4
(Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Yu Wai Man 4/4
Mr. Zhang Zhidong (appointed on 15 October 2007) 1/4
Mr. Sue Ka Lok (appointed on 20 November 2007) 1/4
Mr. Wilson Ng (resigned on 25 October 2007) 1/4
Mr. Ng Wee Keat (resigned on 20 November 2007) 2/4
Mr. Ng Eng Leng (resigned on 20 November 2007) 2/4
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Kwok Tai 4/4
Mr. Weng Yixiang (appointed on 15 October 2007) 1/4
Mr. Lu Xinsheng (appointed on 25 October 2007) 1/4
Mr. Xiong Wei (appointed on 25 October 2007) 1/4
Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan (resigned on 15 October 2007) 3/4
Mr. Lau Pok Lam (resigned on 25 October 2007) 3/4

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Group adopts a dual leadership structure in which the role
of the Chairman is separated from that of the Chief Executive
Officer (“CEQ"). The Chairman is responsible for overseeing
all Board functions, while the executive directors and senior
management are under the leadership of the CEO to oversee
the day-to-day operations of the Group and implementing the
strategies and policies approved by the Board.

The position of the Chairman of the Board is currently held by
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul and the position of CEO is currently
held by Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.1

stipulates that non-executive directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company are
not appointed for a specific term but shall retire from office by
rotation at least once every three years as referred to in the
bye-law 87 of the Company's bye-laws which provides that
at each annual general meeting one-third of the directors of
the Company for the time being (or, if their number is not a
multiple of three (3), the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee was established on 13 July

2005 with specific terms of reference. As at the date of this
report, the Remuneration Committee comprises six members,
including two Executive Directors, namely Mr. Lo Ming Chi,
Charles (Chairman of the Remuneration Committee) and Mr.
Yu Wai Man, and four Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Mr. Weng Yixiang, Mr. Lu Xinsheng
and Mr. Xiong Wei.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
are as follows:

1. to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company's policy and structure for all remuneration
of the Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure
for developing policy on such remuneration; and

2. to review and approve performance-based
remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives resolved by the Board from time to time.

During the year, four meetings were held and the attendance
of each member is set out as follows:

Number of
Members attendance
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles 4/4

(Chairman of the Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Yu Wai Man 4/4
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai 4/4
Mr. Weng Yixiang (appointed on 15 October 2007) 2/4
Mr. Lu Xinsheng (appointed on 25 October 2007) 1/4
Mr. Xiong Wei (appointed on 25 October 2007) 1/4
Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan (resigned on 15 October 2007) 2/4
Mr. Lau Pok Lam (resigned on 25 October 2007) 3/4
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The following is a summary of work performed by the

Remuneration Committee during the year:

1. to determine the remuneration of the Directors; and

2. to review the remuneration policy of the Group.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

AT REFEHNEZEEeRFAMETTHEZH

E:2)
= .

1. EXEZEFH &
2. REAREZHEMEE -

BEERS

i

R

Currently, the Company did not have a nomination committee.
The Directors are responsible for selecting and recommending
candidates for directorship. They identify individuals suitably
qualified in terms of skill, knowledge and experience to
become members of the Board, taking into account of the
then existing composition of the Board in terms of skill,
knowledge and experience and make recommendation to the
Board for approval.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 March 2008, remuneration payable
to the Company's auditors, Ernst & Young, for the provision
of audit services was HK$1,080,000. During the year,
HK$523,600 was paid as remuneration to Ernst & Young for
the provision of non-audit related services to the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

As at the date of this report, the Audit Committee comprises

four Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr.
Wong Kwok Tai (Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr.
Weng Yixiang, Mr. Lu Xinsheng and Mr. Xiong Wei. One of
the Independent Non-executive Directors possesses the
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise as required under the Listing
Rules.
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The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are:

1. to make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditors, to approve the remuneration and
terms of engagement of the external auditors, and any
questions of resignation or dismissal of those auditors;

2. to discuss with the external auditors before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit;

3. to review the interim and annual financial statements
before submission to the Board;

4. to discuss problems and reservations arising from the
interim results and final audit, and any matters the
external auditors may wish to discuss; and

5. to review the Group's financial and accounting policies
and practices.

During the year, four audit committee meetings were held and
the attendance of each member is set out as follows:

Number of
Members attendance
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai (Chairman of the Audit Committee) 4/4
Mr. Weng Yixiang (appointed on 15 October 2007) 2/4
Mr. Lu Xinsheng (appointed on 25 October 2007) 1/4
Mr. Xiong Wei (appointed on 25 October 2007) 1/4
Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan (resigned on 15 October 2007) 2/4
Mr. Lau Pok Lam (resigned on 25 October 2007) 3/4
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The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the year:

1. to review with the management and auditors of the
Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, to discuss the audited financial
statements for the year 31 March 2007 and to
recommend them to the Board for approval; and

2. to review with the management and auditors of the
Company the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, to discuss the unaudited
interim financial statements for the six months ended
30 September 2007 and to recommend them to the
Board for approval.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCOUNTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2008.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about
their responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditors’ Report” on pages 35 to 36 of this
annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL

UNTREZZEENFAMETIHEIHRR

1. HARREEERZBENENASH
PRz st RAIRIER  SmEE
ZETHFA=TBUEFEZR
BRYBmE YHEBETEESUH
mE#Z - K
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PRz &t RAIRIER  SmEE
ZETEFAAZTHIERNEAZK
REZTHMBERR AHBETES
SUHBEERAZ -

ESURBACZER
EXeRAERFRERTHRE  REHRZ
BROAMMEEMRE MR REMBEE
MEREL ZMEHEE2®R—ENETF -
LIS A S

ESEARBREFERBEARABE_TTNF
A=t BLFEZMBBERNAELE-

ARRSNEZBEMAMBHRRZETBRE
RAFERFEISEICR 87 % HAN RS
A o

B S 12

The Board recognizes its responsibilities for maintaining an
adequate system of internal control to safeguard the Group's
assets and shareholders’ interests. An internal control system,
including a defined management structure with limits of
authority, is designed to help achieving business objectives,
safeguard assets against unauthorized use, maintain proper
accounting records for the provision of reliable financial
information for internal use and for publication. The internal
control system is set up to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance against material mis-statement or loss and
to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operational
systems and achievement of the Group’s objectives.

During the year, the Board conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.
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To the shareholders of Xin Corporation Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements of Xin Corporation
Limited set out on pages 37 to 144, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31
March 2008, and the consolidated income statement,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended,
and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility
includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making
accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda
Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors'’
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors
consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

BB EE ()
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is  FIMHEE  HPMESHEZEERETEE
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit EMARFMNEFZE RIBHER -

opinion.

OPINION =R

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and HFIRR®  ZFHBHRRERIBESTE UM BR

fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 March 2008 and of the Group’s loss and
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
18th Floor

Two International Finance Centre
8 Finance Street

Central

Hong Kong

25 July 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
ZeEmE

Year ended 31 March 2008
2 EENF=ZRA=+—ItFE

2008 2007
—BENE ZETLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B st FExT FAT
REVENUE WA 5 129,582 193,989
Cost of sales SHEAR (113,747) (168,509) —
Gross profit EH 15,835 25,480
Other income and gains H U A R U ss 5 8,638 2,080
Selling and distribution costs HERDHERAZ (136) (248)
Administrative expenses TR (18,922) (17,499) —
Net losses on investments at fair FRBREATFEBYK _—
value through profit or loss ZREZ BRI (3,600) - S
Impairment of goodwill EERE 16 (6,478) -
Other expenses H it (897) (1,897) )
Finance costs BERA 6 (3,926) (4,273) —_—
- a
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX BRBADER (F8) 7 (9,486) 3,643 —=
Tax B 10 (655) (3,553) i
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR EEERRN (BE) (10,141) 90
-
Attributable to: AT AT RELS
Equity holders of the Company RRRERTEA 11 (12,854) (7,904)
Minority interests DEERER 2,713 7,994 —_—
(10,141) 90 —
LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE KRARLBER
TO ORDINARY EQUITY EZEBEA
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY EitEREER 12
Basic LN (HK1.6 cents#&{lll) (HK3.6 cents/1ll) e
Diluted &g N/ATEHR N/AT i F
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HGEEERAER
31 March 2008
—EENF=ZH=+—H
2008 2007
—EEN\F T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
=2 THT FHETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment MmE - HEREE 13 26 163
Investment properties WEME 14 - 20,188
Prepaid land lease payments T+ AR S RRIE 15 - 31,124
Goodwill EES 16 - 6,478
=
— s
Total non-current assets IEMBEVE ELRRE 26 57,953
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 18 1,234 1,970
— Accounts receivable JrE I BR 5R 19 36,468 75,869
Prepaid land lease payments B LSRR 15 - 779
-
Prepayments, deposits and TERIE - ek
I ; =
other receivables Hfh e U AR 3K 20 4,036 1,105
i Loan receivable FEU B 3K 21 8,000 -
— Due from related companies BN B8 3E N Rl FIE 22 1,204 -
—— Investments at fair value through FRERRATEEBESY]
profit or loss BRI E 23 5,340 -
- 1
Pledged deposits BTN 24 48,256 -
——— . .
Cash and cash equivalents RehkReFED 24 186,285 29,255
' e
Total current assets MENVEEBRE 290,823 108,978
—_— CURRENT LIABILITIES pEIN=NE
——— Accounts and bills payable JEAS BR R PR AN 22 4R 25 6,884 21,019
Other payables and accruals Hi TR R ERT IR 26 1,854 22,982
— \ N
Interest-bearing bank borrowings STRBRITER 27 - 12,079
L . . o = S 5
Loan from a minority shareholder ~ —fzI V> #HARIZH 2 EHX 28 - 644
== Due to a minority shareholder JER — (L DB R FRIE 29 34,255 48,241
Due to a related company JE N — B BEE A RIFRIE 22 - 18
Tax payable e FR 1A 1,611 3,659
Total current liabilities eI RER L 44,604 108,642
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHE 246,219 336
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERRE
LIABILITIES =K 246,245 58,289
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
ZEEERMER
31 March 2008
—EENF=ZA=+—H
2008 2007
—EENFE TR
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FERT FET
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Convertible notes Gl =t 30 69,074 19,536
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEEEE 69,074 19,536
Net assets BEFH 177,171 38,753
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to AN
equity holders EERFEA
of the Company PEfG R —
Issued capital BT 32 10,699 4,747 i
Equity component of AR EE 2
. IO _—
convertible notes HEmE D 12,287 6,035
Reserves 1 34(a) 153,577 27,283 -
-—
176,563 38,065
Minority interests LERRER 608 688 —
L -
Total equity iR 177,171 38,753
[

Suen Cho Hung, Paul

Chairman
FE

Lo Ming Chi, Charles
LY

Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
BB RITEAEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GEEmBER

Year ended 31 March 2008
T EENF=ZA=1+—"HILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ADAREREARL
Equity
Share component of  Exchange Share
Issied  premium Contributed ~ convertible fluctuation option Accumulated Minority Total
capital  account  surplus notes  resee  reserve losses Total  interests equity
TEERE Ex |

BRRE BRHEER BERH <EENS  RBRE HRERE  ZEER & RRER L
Notes  HKSOO0 ~ HKSO0O  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKS000  HKSOOO  HKS00O  HKS0OO  HKFOOO  HK$000
it Tkt Tt T TR TR TR ThR ThR TR T

T

(note 30)
(Hi30)

At 1 April 2006 HoBEAEME-A 87 -8 103 10 BT (684T) Qi) 90T 7483
Bchange diffeenceon  REFIHEEZ

translaton of the HHER

financial statements EECER

o foreign entities ] - - - - 2399 - - 2399 874 3073
Total income and expense  E R ER R

for the year recognised 2 AEE

directl in equity Wzteg - - - - 2399 - - 2399 874 3213
Profit(oss) for the year ~ AERER]/ (1) - - - - - - (1904 (7904) 7994 90
Total income and expense AEFEME

for the year % - - - -2 S (%) (G55 8se 3363
Acquisiion of WELHRR

minoriy interests & - - - - - - - - (30) (30)
Dividend declaredtoa [~ H &kE

minorty shareholder  EIEHRE - - - - - - - - ()
Shares issued on BLREE

an open offer ¥kt () 2481 7292 - - - - - 9B - 29773
Conversion of RATAR

comvertble nte E e 1418 2006 N - - - 1% - 159
Share options exercised  FRTEZ

during the year B 3(0) 2] 602 - - - (152) - a - a7
Share issue expenses  RHEER ] - (1,765) - - - - - (1,765) - (1,765)
Issue of convertible notes - B/7ATEREE 30 - - - 1282 - - - 1262 - 1282
At 31 March 2007 R-ZELF=A=1-H 4147 4623t 308t 6035 2409* 05F (4751 38065 688 38753
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GKEEREHR

Year ended 31 March 2008
B —_TZEN\F=ZA=+—HIFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company
KRAREEEARL

Share Exchange Share
Issued ~ premium fluctuation option Accumulated Minority Total
capital ~ account reserve  reserve losses Total  interests equity
E% H%
BEIRA RHEER RaGE ERERE Z8ER At BREE  #EE
Notes  HKS000  HK$000 HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$'000
i3 TRt TER TEn TEn TR TER  TER  TER
At 1 April 2007 R-FRrEmA-A g 2% 2409 Q475 38065 B8 375
Bichange difference on -~ REEHEEL
translation of the i ERS
financil statements EL7ER
of foreign entites 28 - - n - - n 64 837
Totelincome and expense  EERERED
for the year recognised 2 AER
directly in equiy g - - K - - n 64 837
Proft/(oss) for the year  REFEF/ (EE) - - - - (185 (12854) s (1014)
Totel income and expense AEENE
for the year &% - - 73 - (1285)  (12,081) 21771 (9,304)
Disposal of subsidiaries  HEMEAE 35(0) - - (1,656) - - (16%) - (16%)
Diidend dedaredtoa  F-tI) R
minority shareholder SRS - - - - - - (2857) (2857)
Conversion of KTk
coneertble notes - G 59 139130 - - - - 198 - 11984
Share options exercised  EAfIEZ
during the year Bl () ] 1206 - (309) - 942 - 9%)
Issue of convertible notes  E{TARZE 30 - - - - - 31625 - 31625
Direct tansaction costs AR
attibutable to the RS
equiy componentof I ER
convertble notes REME - - - - - (156) - (156)
At 31 March 2008 RZZENE=A=1-8 10,699 186,571 1526* - (37605 176563 608 17717

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of
HK$153,577,000 (2007: HK$27,283,000) in the consolidated

balance sheet.

ZERERPRERAEERABRYPZILR
A #153,577,0008 L (Z T T L F ¢
27,283,000/87T) °

REPORT 2008

FH

T

M




XIN CORPORATION LIMITED
E=E N =

/ ®7T B #H = R =7
ANNUAL REPORT 2008 %H R
CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FERSRER
Year ended 31 March 2008
HEZEZN\F=_A=+—HLEFE
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FitaE FERT FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING REEBECES
ACTIVITIES mE
Profit/(loss) before tax BREIATEF], (EE) (9,486) 3,643
Adjustments for: Bt &IE S
>————————— Finance costs B & RS 6 3,926 4,273
Sy Bank interest income HRITHEWA 5 (2,574) (372)
Interest income on loans receivable U & 72 Fl B YA 5 (693) —
- Interest income on an amount FEU —FEIREE A A
due from a related company B2 F B A 5 (30) -
Gains on disposal of items of LEMZE - BEREE
property, plant and equipment HB 2 W= 5 - (157)
Impairment of investment REMEZ
~H properties VENIE] 7 - 446
_——— Impairment of goodwill EERE 6,478 -
—_— Net losses on investments at FHiREREATEET
fair value through profit or loss BRI E 2 BEFE 3,600 -
Depreciation of items of property, — #1% - B&E k& HEE
- - plant and equipment ZIE 7 156 146
— Depreciation of investment REME
——— properties ZITE 7 1,541 2,312
Recognition of prepaid land WRIE T
- lease payments MEFIE 7 520 779
— Increase in investments at BRBERIEATEE
e — fair value through profit FIRRZ IR E
or loss o (8,940) —
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB AR 2 W 5 (4,562) -
- =
———— (10,064) 11,070
—— Decrease in inventories FEZED 736 103
Decrease/(increase) in accounts FEUWBR R Z R
I receivable (38 hn) 39,401 (18,178)
- Increase in prepayments, deposits ~ FEfTFUA « & R EAM
and other receivables FEM AR SR 2 38 N (3,045) (234)
Increase in loan receivable JEWE R 2 150 (8,000) -
Increase/(decrease) in accounts FERTBR R R BT 2 1%
and bills payable &, Ced) (12,304) 8,094
Increase in other payables HAth S BR R ERT
and accruals FIE 2 20 1,892 402
Decrease in amount due to a JEA — (L DB R
minority shareholder FRIEZ R (15,872) -
Decrease in balances with AR E N R A
related companies 2D (1,222) (525)
Exchange realignment D 3¢ B 1,552 (265)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
HFEHSRER
Year ended 31 March 2008

HE_ZTZENF=_A=1+—"B1LFE
2008 2007
—EENFE TR
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b FERT FHET
Cash generated from/(used in) CEEBES S (BR)
operations ZRE (6,926) 467
Interest on loans receivable received ZWEKRE R Z F& 693 -
Overseas taxes paid EAE5NMRIE (2,923) (3,066)
Net cash outflow from REEBRE
operating activities T FRE (9,156) (2,599)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFESZ
ACTIVITIES RERg
Interest received B U F 8 2,604 372
Purchases of items of property, BEME  BEK
plant and equipment X fE1E B 13 (15) (15)
Proceeds from disposal of items HEME - BER
of property, plant and equipment HHEE B Fﬁ?%?ﬂ = 157
Net proceeds from disposal HEHB A
of subsidiaries Fﬁf%fklﬁi%%%“ﬁ 35(b) 22,205 -
Increase in time deposit TERRF AR 2150 - (1,030)
Increase in pledged time deposit IR BT sk 48 0 24 (48,256) -
Exchange realignment DEE 34 B (110) -
Net cash outflow from BEFESZ
investing activities W& 558 (23,572) (516)
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
%Aiﬁﬁlllbgi
Year ended 31 March 2008
BHEZTEZN\F=—A=+—HLFE
2008 2007
—EENFE ZETLF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Liks3 FTHER FHET
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BMEFHZ
ACTIVITIES HEeERE
Proceeds from issue of BT MR R
convertible notes FriSsk1E 30 200,000 -
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRM TS FIA = 29,773
Proceeds from exercise of gkl
E— share options FTiS /18 32(e) 942 471
— Share issue expenses BinBITFX - (1,765)
Increase/(decrease) in trust Rt ER Z %M~
receipt loans ORA) (529) 529
Repayment of bank loans EBIRITER (3,500) (4,334)
Repayment of other loan BEAMER - (2,000)
—_— Repayment of a loan from a B8 — BRI it
minority shareholder ZER (644) -
Expenses for issue of BATRAI AR 1R
- convertible notes Fx (2,500) -
—_— Increase/(decrease) in an amount T —{r D BT FKIE
—— due to a minority shareholder 23gm, CRd) (4,780) 4,780
Interest paid EARFE (538) (1,237)
Exchange realignment HE 5, 424 -
' o
Net cash inflow from financing MERBZREN
activities FER 188,875 26,217
' =
R NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH HE&RRSEEY 2 1E M
EQUIVALENTS FH 156,147 23,102
—_— Cash and cash equivalents at FNzRe R
T beginning of year ReFEY 28,225 5,123
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREFE o HE
——— changes, net R 773 -
e
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FERZBER
- AT END OF YEAR REeEEY 185,145 28,225
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HRE&RHAELEEYLEL
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS o
Cash and bank balances R RIBITHER 24 8,099 28,225
Time deposits with original maturity EEUES R Z|H# A
of less than three months TR=EAZ
when acquired EHFER 177,046 -
185,145 28,225
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BALANCE SHEET
BERBER
31 March 2008
—EEINF=ZA=+—H
2008 2007
—EEN\F —ETELF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
K FET FAET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - HEREE 13 18 9
Investments in subsidiaries RHB AR Z’E 17 - -
Total non-current assets IEMBEELRER 18 9
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Due from subsidiaries FEUL I B A B R IE 17 56,440 8,114
Due from a related company FEW —FEREE R /TAIE 22 1,095 -
Prepayments, deposits and other TENFRIE - e K
receivables o th FE U BR 5K 20 272 357
Investments at fair value through BRBREATE
profit or loss BYIRZIKE 23 5,340 -
Cash and bank balances B KIRTTE G 24 181,976 24,827 —
Total current assets B S B 245,123 33,298 z
| e
CURRENT LIAB.,I.LITIES V=R . r——
Due to a subsidiary JE A5t —FEI BT BB 1 R 3B 17 15,827 -
Other payables and accruals E bR ERTF0E 26 1,254 1,878 :
Total current liabilities BB EARRE 17,081 1,878 B
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 228,042 31,420 a—
-
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEER
LIABILITIES REBEE 228,060 31,429 -
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EREBEE
Convertible notes AR RS =ik 30 69,074 19,536
Total non-current liabilities IEMBEERRE 69,074 19,536
Net assets BEFH 158,986 11,893
EQUITY =
Issued capital BT 32 10,699 4,747
Equity component of convertible AHBREE2
notes =D 12,287 6,035
Reserves i 34(b) 136,000 1,111
Total equity SRR 158,986 11,893

Suen Cho Hung, Paul

Chairman

o

Lo Ming Chi, Charles
LY

Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

&I ERITEARE

43




XIN CORPORATION LIMITED
T BY AT

ANNUAL

i

R

46

REPORT

= AR == =

2008 F |

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR5 R R ML

31

MARCH 2008

—EENF=A=+—H

1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

2.1

Xin Corporation Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in Bermuda. The registered office of the
Company is located at Clarendon House, 2 Church
Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. On 1 April 2008, the
principal place of business of the Company has been
changed to Suite 1501,
23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

15th Floor, Great Eagle Centre,

The Group is principally engaged in supply and
procurement business operations and securities
investment.

Vision Century Group Limited (“Vision Century”), a
company incorporated in the British Virgin lIslands, had
been the Company's immediate holding company.
Following Vision Century's disposal of its entire equity
interest in the Company during the year, Vision Century
ceased to be the Company’'s immediate holding
company.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for equity investments, which
have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued) 2.1 WEE%E(E)
Basis of consolidation mEEE
The consolidated financial statements include the REMBREREAAARESHMER
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries Al(mBIAEEDE#&E_ZTTNEF=
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year A=t—RIEFEZHBHRE - WBR
ended 31 March 2008. The results of subsidiaries are RIZEBENDRARNEERGESEZ
consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains HEFt A& M B MK - WIFE AL —
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date EUBIMEK  BEEZEHEE AL -
that such control ceases. All significant intercompany REBRNBRRBZABEAR S L&
transactions and balances within the Group are eliminated BIINRBIRE IR B R o
on consolidation.
Minority interests represent the interests of outside DHRREREWIFAREEREF ZH
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net AR ARCIMBARIEEREEF —
assets of the Company's subsidiaries. An acquisition of EEPFMEU%EX o WEE D BRI —
minority interests is accounted for using the parent entity NAVRIEEABR - 1R UL PTIE & B OF "
extension method whereby the difference between the TEE’JKF?E@?WEEEETEZWE’J%%ﬁﬁﬁm 2
consideration and the book value of the share of the net REE - o
assets is recognised as goodwill. —
- a
2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 22 MARKBEBITIEENBEREEDNZ  —
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS e e —
The Group has adopted the following new and revised REEERERMBATIE REAEFT B .
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year's financial MR ELENRERNFEIMERE -
statements. —
L.
HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: BRRBRE SRMIA: BE _——
Disclosures ERETH
HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures BEGER BARE
F15% (B3T)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2 % (BB HB ERMBREE
BREREZEE) AIE2% 2 & E
-REEsH —
HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded % (BRAHB NEAT ZERR
Derivatives BREREZEE)
-2 BENSR
HK(IFRIC)-Int 10 Interim Financial Reporting and A% (BRAHB REMBRERAE
Impairment REREZES)
-REEI10%
HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury EACLEL BRNBREERER
Share Transactions WERBZEE) -RENERERHR S

—REBENR
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

22 HAREBITERMBREER 2

2 16 D)

Except for HKAS 1 Amendment and HKFRS 7, the
adoption of HK(IFRIC)-Int 8, HK(IFRIC)-Int 9, HK(IFRIC)-
Int 10 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 11 has had no material effect
on the Group's financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2008.

The principal effects of adopting HKFRS 7 and HKAS 1
Amendment are as follows:

(a

(b)

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

This standard requires disclosures that enable
users of the financial statements to evaluate the
significance of the Group’s financial instruments
and the nature and extent of risks arising from
those financial instruments. The new disclosures are
included throughout the financial statements. While
there has been no effect on the financial position
or results of operations of the Group, comparative
information has been included where appropriate.

Amendment to HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements — Capital Disclosures

This amendment requires the Group to make
disclosures that enable users of the financial
statements to evaluate the Group's objectives,
policies and processes for managing capital. These
new disclosures are shown in note 41 to the
financial statements.

BREBEFENFEIR (BT REEY
BHREEYE7TRI KA EE (BER
MaERBEZES) —REBFESNR
ZE(BRBHEHRE2EBEZES) -2
BEW TE(EBRVBHREREZR
Bg)-R2BE 10 LEE (BBETK
BERBZES)-REF1NRHEAR
ERE_TTN\F=A=+—HILFE
ZHBHRRUBELERTE -
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B BB
SOERIRT AR EEBE - US
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SHREBRRABEE - BERE
Il A% 9 (B2 B RS 0% o 48 o
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A °

(b) RS ERB IR (BFT) 258
BRER-EFHE
ZEFTRERNSEAELABH
B ASHBHRARNERE AT
EAREEEREENER BER
BF REHWRBEZTRERUBER
RHMIEAT -




2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective,
in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 2
Share-based Payment:

HKFRS 2 Amendments

Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations '
HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations 2

HKFRS 8
HKAS 1 (Revised)

Operating Segments !
Presentation of Financial
Statements '

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs !
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements 2
HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Puttable Financial Instruments
Amendments and Obligations Arising on

Liquidation !
HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 Service Concession
Arrangements *
HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 Customer Loyalty

Programmes ?

HKAS 19 — The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset,
Minimum Funding

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

Requirements and their
Interaction 4

' Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2008

*  Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2008
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

2.3

EEMEERER BB KBRS
HACTE (&)

The amendment to HKFRS 2 restricts the definition of
"vesting condition” to a condition that includes an explicit
or implicit requirement to provide services. Any other
conditions are non-vesting conditions, which have to be
taken into account to determine the fair value of the
equity instruments granted. In the case that the award
does not vest as a result of a failure to meet a non-
vesting condition that is within the control of either the
entity or the counterparty, this must be accounted for as
a cancellation. The Group has not entered into share-
based payment schemes with non-vesting conditions
attached and, therefore, does not expect significant
implications on its accounting for share-based payments.

The revised HKFRS 3 introduces a number of changes in
the accounting for business combinations that will impact
on the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported
results in the period that an acquisition occurs and
future reported results. The revised HKAS 27 requires
that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary is
accounted for as an equity transaction. Therefore, such a
change will have no impact on goodwill, nor will it give
rise to a gain or loss. Furthermore, the amended standard
changes the accounting for losses incurred by the
subsidiary as well as the loss of control of a subsidiary.
The changes introduced by the revised HKFRS 3 and the
revised HKAS 27 must be applied prospectively and will
affect future acquisitions and transactions with minority
interests.

(EET 18 2 &8 B 53R & 2RI E 257 IR 4l
BIBBEGINEERTRBERRE
SIS TR AR E R AR TS AR 1 o H AR
BRI RIEGBIGHT  ZFGRGRAEE
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23 EEMEEMARERZERMBRE

HACEE (&)

HKFRS 8, which will replace HKAS 14 Segment Reporting,
specifies how an entity should report information about
its operating segments, based on information about
the components of the entity that is available to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes of
allocating resources to the segments and assessing their
performance. This standard also requires the disclosure
of information about the products and services provided
by the segments, the geographical areas in which the
Group operates, and revenue from the Group's major
customers.

HKAS 1 has been revised to separate owner and non-
owner changes in equity. The statement of changes
in equity will include only details of transactions with
owners, with all non-owner changes in equity presented
as a single line. This standard also introduces the
statement of comprehensive income: it presents all items
of income and expense recognised in profit or loss,
together with all other items of recognised income and
expenses, either in one single statement, or in two linked
statements.

HKAS 23 has been revised to require capitalisation of
borrowing costs when such costs are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset. As the Group's current policy for
borrowing costs aligns with the requirements of the
revised standard, the revised standard is unlikely to have
any financial impact on the Group.

HKAS 32 and HKAS 1 Amendments permit a range of
entities to recognise their capital as equity rather than
as financial liabilities, and require additional disclosures
for puttable financial instruments classified as equity.
The amendments reinforce that there is a limited scope
exception to the definition of a financial liability and no
analogies should be made to these requirements.
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 requires an operator under public-to-
private service concession arrangements to recognise
the consideration received or receivable in exchange for
the construction services as a financial asset and/or an
intangible asset, based on the terms of the contractual
arrangements. HK(IFRIC)-Int 12 also addresses how an
operator shall apply existing HKFRSs to account for the
obligations and the rights arising from service concession
arrangements by which a government or a public
sector entity grants a contract for the construction of
infrastructure used to provide public services and/or for
the supply of public services. As the Group currently has
no such arrangements, the interpretation is unlikely to
have any financial impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 13 requires that loyalty award credits
granted to customers as part of a sales transaction are
accounted for as a separate component of the sales
transaction. The consideration received in the sales
transaction is allocated between the loyalty award credits
and the other components of the sale. The amount
allocated to the loyalty award credits is determined
by reference to their fair value and is deferred until
the awards are redeemed or the liability is otherwise
extinguished. The Group has currently introduced
the customer loyalty award credits arrangement and
management does not expect this arrangement would
have any material financial impact on the Group.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 addresses how to assess the limit under
HKAS 19 Employee Benefits on the amount of a refund
or a reduction in future contributions in relation to a
defined benefit scheme that can be recognised as an
asset, in particular, when a minimum funding requirement
exists.

2.3
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2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS 23 EEMEMKRERZEBUBRE
(continued) ER & (E)
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of REE EENEZENT REIEFTEE
the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial MERMEENRVRERREZE - E
application. So far, it has concluded that the adoption of SHSHERA  RMBBGFERE
HKAS 1 (Revised) and HKFRS 8 may result in new or 5 (RIERT) R BB M B HREERFESHR
amended disclosures. In respect of the remaining new MRS ERBBITZRE - HEARE
and revised HKFRSs, it is not yet in a position to state B Al R BEEE H ST R] REERT 2
whether they would have a significant impact on the EAMBREENGOHALEEBLRK
Group's results of operations and financial position. MSIRAENERNTE -

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 24 FEEHBERBE
Subsidiaries A B

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly,
so as to obtain benefits from its activities. The results
of subsidiaries are included in the Company's income
statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company's investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of minority interests
represents the difference between the consideration and
the book value of the share of the net assets acquired at
the date of acquisition.

Goodwill arising on acquisition is recognised in the
consolidated balance sheet as an asset, initially measured
at cost and subsequently at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. The carrying amount of goodwill is
reviewed for impairment annually or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March.
Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

24 FEEHBERBE (H)

i

R

94

Impairment of non-financial assets other than
goodwill

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, financial assets and goodwill),
the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell, and is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that
are largely independent of those from other assets or
groups of assets, in which case the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to
whether there is any indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have
decreased. If such indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only
if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such impairment
loss is credited to the income statement in the period in
which it arises.
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24 FESHBRBE (F)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is
under common control with, the Group; (ii) has
an interest in the Group that gives it significant
influence over the Group; or (iii) has joint control
over the Group;

the party is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or its holding companies;

the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (b);

the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-
controlled or significantly influenced by or for which
significant voting power in such entity resides with,
directly or indirectly, any individual referred to in (b)
or (c); or

the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any
entity that is related party of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

24 FESHBRBE (H)

i

R

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use. Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
income statement in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that
the expenditure has resulted in an increase in the future
economic benefits expected to be obtained from the
use of an item of property, plant and equipment, and
where the cost of the item can be measured reliably, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of that
asset or as a replacement.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life, after taking into account its estimated residual value.
The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Leasehold improvements 20% or over the
lease terms,
whichever is shorter

12.5% — 15%

Furniture, fixtures, equipment 20%

Moulds, plant and machinery
and motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is
allocated on a reasonable basis among the parts and
each part is depreciated separately.
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Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method
are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance
sheet date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment recognised in the income statement in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between
the net sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings under
construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct
costs of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of items of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to
earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather
than for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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Leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals receivable
under the operating leases are credited to the income
statement on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable under the
operating leases are charged to the income statement on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are
initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised on
the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets

When financial assets are recognised initially, they are
measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group assesses whether a contract contains an
embedded derivative when the Group first becomes a
party to it and assesses whether an embedded derivative
is required to be separated from the host contract when
the analysis shows that the economic characteristics and
risks of the embedded derivative are not closely related
to those of the host contract. Reassessment only occurs
if there is a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modifies the cash flows that would otherwise
be required under the contract.

The Group determines the classification of its financial
assets after initial recognition and, where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the balance
sheet date.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include
financial assets held for trading. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of sale in the near term. Gains or losses
on investments held for trading are recognised in the
income statement. The net gain or losses recognised in
the income statement does not include any dividends
or interest earned on these financial assets, which are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. Such assets are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is
calculated taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate and transaction costs. Gains
and losses are recognised in the income statement when
the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired,
as well as through the amortisation process.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference
to quoted market bid prices at the close of business at
the balance sheet date. For investments where there is
no active market, fair value is determined using valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent arm'’s
length market transactions; reference to the current
market value of another instrument which is substantially
the same; a discounted cash flow analysis; and other
valuation models.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether
there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired.

Assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred) discounted at the financial asset's original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of
the asset is reduced either directly or through the use
of an allowance account. The amount of the impairment
loss is recognised in the income statement. Loans and
receivables together with any associated allowance are
written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
was recognised, the previously recognised impairment
loss is reversed by adjusting the allowance account. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
in the income statement, to the extent that the carrying
value of the asset does not exceed its amortised cost at
the reversal date.
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Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

In relation to accounts and other receivables, a provision
for impairment is made when there is objective evidence
(such as the probability of insolvency or significant
financial difficulties of the debtor and significant
changes in the technological, market economic or legal
environment that have an adverse effect on the debtor)
that the Group will not be able to collect all of the
amounts due under the original terms of an invoice. The
carrying amount of the receivables is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are
derecognised when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised where:

«  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

« the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows
from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third
party under a "pass-through” arrangement; or

« the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset
is recognised to the extent of the Group's continuing
involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that
takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset
is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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Financial liabilities at amortised cost (including
interest-bearing loans and borrowings)

Financial liabilities, including accounts and bills payable,
other payables, interest-bearing bank borrowings, loan
from a minority shareholder and amounts due to a
minority shareholder and a related company, are initially
stated at fair value less directly attributable transaction
costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost. The related interest expense is recognised
within “finance costs” in the income statement.

Gains and losses are recognised in the income statement
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the amortisation process.

Convertible notes

The component of convertible notes that exhibits
characteristics of a liability is recognised as a liability in
the balance sheet, net of transaction costs. On issuance
of convertible notes, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an
equivalent non-convertible note; and this amount is
carried as a long term liability on the amortised cost basis
until extinguished on conversion or redemption. The
remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the conversion
option that is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of
the conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent
years. Transaction costs are apportioned between the
liability and equity components of the convertible notes
based on the allocation of proceeds to the liability
and equity components when the instruments are first
recognised.

BRBHEEAARZERAE (BEFR
BERRERK)

TRHAEERENERRENRE H
fil AR K - FEBRTTER - — D8
BREHRZERREN—BDBERE
—RKEERRFIE - T RRFEER

E%%EK%&K%%*E%M%EH
BIEARBHEKATE  BENFRTES

R ERIBRSN Eﬁt\ ST BRI
SRR - MR BRSO AM R PR
BRAJET -

BE IR BERERRE
KUt & P HERR ©

BB R &

TRERRE
ABMERETBRTABEHBZES M
BREMAREEERBRT EEZJ 38

B BTBRREER BB 2R
FEEDRAFETLRREBRSEEE 2
MG REF - MUt BRE T iR S5 K
EXEARAGRIE BEERKRIE
EIREHEAL - FIERERESHIER
MR RNHBRR SRR EER R =
NIERAR BMBREEEERNERFE

TZEHHE - X%ﬁ$ﬁ@ﬁ%§/}\ﬁ§
REZELAER FEFEIEZEER
a2 ESERREZEZE
BERERE D




)gN ?ORPORATION LIMITED
V= g =

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 F R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

BAFE R R M aE

31 MARCH 2008
—EE\FE=A=1—H

24 FESHBRBE (F)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-
out basis. Net realisable value is based on estimated
selling prices less any estimated cost to be incurred to
completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheets, cash and cash
equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to
cash, which are not restricted as to use.
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Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase
in the discounted present value amount arising from
the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
income statement.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax is recognised in the income statement, or in equity if
it relates to items that are recognised in the same or a
different period directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

«  where the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

« in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries
where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences can be controlled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:

« where the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

« in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

Frie®i (&)
BEEMBEBENAAEERRTERER
R R

s MMNBERET BEIXZKNS
BRIEXBEHARIZEESLRA
BERELEMNRZHETEH G
i M 2 SR TR M S B IR
BZELEHAEBERIN &

e HMEBMRMBARARZREELZ
EARNERZEMS  ERERE
£ 7 o] B ) AT DAY i) K% R =
REFARETERAAERRKED -

EREMAEEMRMEANRERERER
RE A Z BRI % BRI E B 2 IR
BEZEBMER - AR A B AR
MBI HREREERATBAZH
BEHEAEERAKBAZHEBRZEER
BR

e MMET—BEIEEBEHIIH
NPEREXBEHRIZEE
FEEREEAMNRXSHAEY
B T N 3K R AR Bl A 3K B 1R R
REEBZBERAMNREREZRZ
ELEHBEERI &

s BMRMBRAARAZREELZAM
BRERZRMS  BEHEEEE
NEREZRZEARENARIARAR
@ Ko A] B e AR A a N DA 88
EREZR[RER -

FH

TS T




XIN CORPORATION LIMITED
EV=E =

, #F B A7
ANNUAL

REPORT

= R R =

2008 F 3|

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAF5 R R aE

31 MARCH 2008
—ET/\H#=A=+—8
2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

24 FEEHBERBE (H)

i

R

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet
date and are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all
or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current
tax against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.
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Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the

economic benefits will flow to the Group and when

the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following

bases:

(a)

(b)

©

(d)

(e

from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership, nor effective control over
the goods sold;

from the trading of securities on a trade date basis;

rental income, on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms;

interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial instrument to the
net carrying amount of the financial asset; and

dividend income, when the shareholders' right to
receive payment has been established.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

24 FESHBRBE (H)

i

R

Employee benefits
Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payment
transactions, whereby employees render services as
consideration for equity instruments (“equity-settled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date
at which they are granted. In valuing equity-settled
transactions, no account is taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions linked to the price of
the shares of the Company (“market conditions”), if
applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled, ending on the date on which the
relevant employees become fully entitled to the award
(the "vesting date”). The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at each balance sheet date
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group's best estimate
of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the income statement for
a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for awards where vesting is
conditional upon a market condition, which are treated
as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
conditions are satisfied.
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Employee benefits (continued)
Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification, which increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment arrangement, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the
date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. However, if a new award is substituted for
the cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar
year basis. Under certain circumstances, such leave
which remains untaken as at the balance sheet date
is permitted to be carried forward and utilised by the
respective employees in the following year. An accrual is
made at the balance sheet date for the expected future
cost of such paid leave earned during the year by the
employees and carried forward.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

24 FESHBRBE (H)

i

R

Employee benefits (continued)
Retirement benefits scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the "MPF
Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to the income statement as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions are initially recorded using the functional
currency rates ruling at the date of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency
rates of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All
differences are taken to the income statement. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined.
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Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at
the balance sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of
the Company at the exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date and, their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year. The resulting exchange differences are
included in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign entity, the deferred cumulative amount
recognised in equity relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in the income statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted
average exchange rates for the year.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

34 dt

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the reporting date.
However, uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets
or liabilities affected in the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which the
goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating unit and also to
choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. At 31 March 2008, the
carrying amount of goodwill of HK$6,478,000 was fully
impaired. More details of the assessment of impairment
of goodwill are set out in note 16.

Impairment allowances for accounts and loan receivable

Impairment allowances for accounts and loan receivable
are made based on the assessment of the recoverability
of accounts and loan receivable. The identification of
doubtful debts requires management judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of the
receivables and doubtful debt expenses/write-back in the
period in which such estimate has been changed.
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Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by
business segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment
reporting basis, by geographical segment.

The Group's operating businesses are structured and
managed separately, according to the nature of their
operations and the products they provide. Each of
the Group’s business segments represents a strategic
business unit that offers products which are subject to
risks and returns that are different from those of the
other business segments. Summary details of business
segments are as follows:

« the supply and procurement segment supplies
office equipment and office supplies, machinery,
machinery parts, lubricating oil and bunkerage for
vessels;

«  the securities investment segment includes trading
in equity securities; and

« the corporate and others segment consists of
corporate income and expense items and holding of

property.

In determining the Group's geographical segments,
revenue are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers. Assets are attributed to the
segments based on the location of the assets.

There are no intersegment sales and transfers among the
business segments.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

The following tables present revenue, profit/(loss)
and certain asset, liability and expenditure
information for the Group's business segments for

(a) Business segments

the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007.

4. FEEHR (&)

(@) ¥BoE

TREINAKEEE

2T F

MZZZNF=ZA=1+—HI*F
EREBDEZRA - &5H,/ (&
BIMETEE BERAXZ

Supply and Securities
procurement investment Corporate and others Consolidated
HERFE EERE LERE 58

2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
ZEINE Z2TLE ZBENE JSSEF ZBENE JTTLE ZBENE CTTLF
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
Téx Tér  TEx  TEr  TEx  TEr  TEx AR

Segment revenue: DEUA
Sales to external customers  SNREFZHER 129582 193,989 - - - - 129582 193,989
Other revenue and gains ~ EAMARME 45 345 - - 200 1,200 245 1,545
129,627 194,334 - - 200 1200 129,827 195534
Segment results SEEH 11598 21189 (3,600) - (6218) 1200 1720 22,389

Interest income and FEMAR

unallocated AP

revenue and gains WA RN 8,393 535
Unallocated expenses APERR (15,673) (15,008
Finance costs BERA (3926)  (4273)
Profit/(loss) before tax ~ BFRATER/ (BB (9486) 3,643
Tax il (655)  (3,553)
Profit/(loss) for the year ~ AEERF/ (BHE) (10,141) 90
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. DEEH (F)
(a) Business segments (continued) (a) ¥¥5E (&)
Supply and Securities
procurement investment Corporate and others Consolidated
HERRE B5RE tERER e
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 e
SBRNE CTTLEF ZBBN\F _TTLF ZBRN\E CTTLE CBENF TTLR
HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TEr TEn TEr  TEx TEr  TExn  TER —
Assets and liabilities: EERER:
Segment assets PEEE 45834 82491 6,435 - 8,341 55185 60,610 137676
Unallocated assets FOREE 230239 29,255
Total assets g 290,849 166,931 EE—
T
Segment liabilties HERR 43349 74,403 - - 1255 22161 44604 96564 =
il A =
Unallocated liabilities O EfR 69,074 31614
Total liabiliies aafk 113678 128,178
Other segment EftAE -
information: &N W
Depreciation and nER L
recognition of prepaid EAEMN T —_——
land lease payments RENE 147 139 - - 2070 3098 2217 3237
Impairment of investment A% 2
properties i - - - - - 446 - 446
Impaiment of goodwil ~ FERE = - = - 6478 - 6418 - .
Capital expenditure TS - 15 - - 15 - 15 15

(1]
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 4.

D EEHR (&)

(b) Geographical segments

The following table presents revenue and certain
asset and expenditure information for the Group's
geographical segments for the years ended 31
March 2008 and 2007.

(b) HLEHE

TRENAEEHEE_ZTTNF
MZZEZL+F=ZA=+—HIF
EEsBZBARETEE
R ZER -

Group r&E
The People’s Republic of China
(including Hong Kong
Singapore and Mainland China) Consolidated
REARLAE
s (BREEERPEAE) e
2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007
“BENE _TTHE ZBENE _TTHE ZBENE _TTLE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TARL TEL TR TR THET TR
Segment revenue: PERA:
Sales to external customers IREPZHER 129582 193,989 - - 129582 193989
Other segment information: ~ HtpE&ER :
Segment assets PEEE 45,834 82491 245,015 84440 290,849 166,931
Capital expenditure BAZH - 15 15 - 15 15




REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group's turnover, represents

the net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for

returns and trade discounts during the year.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as
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5. WA~ Hig A R Uk
WA (MEREE 2 E¥E5E) EFANE
HMBRERERESGTM o EHEMBERF
& -

WA~ R AR EDTmT

follows: —_—
2008 2007
—EENF —ZEELF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Revenue WA S
Sale of goods HEEY 129,582 193,989 _
—_—
Other income Hug A e
Bank interest income RITHIBHA 2,574 372
Interest income on loans EWER
receivable 2 BHA 693 - -
Interest income on amount due e —FEIREE A R 5IR = -
from a related company Z A B 30 -
Rental income He WA 200 1,200 —
Others Hith 169 351
—
3,666 1,923 Sp—
[
Gains Wz
Gain on disposal of items of HEME - BE
property, plant and equipment MEEmIER 2 am - 157
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME ARz W
(note 35 (b)) (FfzE35(b)) 4,562 -
Write-back of accrued expenses FERTF 395 -
Others Hh 15 —
4,972 157 _—
8,638 2,080

n
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6. FINANCE COSTS 6. WMEMAK
Group
AEE
2008 2007
—EENE —ETAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHETT
Interest on: AE
Bank loans and other loan HARAFTAZHEE
wholly repayable ZRITER K
within five years Hih B 538 962
Convertible notes A AR & 3,388 3,311
3,926 4273

R
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PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX 7. BRBADGF (EE)
The Group's profit/(loss) before tax is arrived at after REBBRBAER, (BB &Mk
charging/(crediting): GtA) A THIE
2008 2007
—EBENF ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 p——
FET FHET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 113,747 168,509
Depreciation of items of mE - BB K&
property, plant and R HE B
equipment (note 13) ZIE (KMzE13) 156 146
Depreciation of investment REMEZTE S
properties (note 14) (PfFEE14) 1,541 2,312 —_
Recognition of prepaid land MERTEN T —id
lease payments (note 15) MEFIE (KFE15) 520 779 :
Minimum lease payments in ~ B THEEF s
respect of land and buildings &K% 580 389 —
Auditors’ remuneration ZEAN B & 1,080 1,020 L
Employee benefits expense EERMNAX —_—
(excluding directors’ (TBiEEEMe - ——
remuneration — note 8): Kizt8) .
Wages and salaries TENHS 2,552 1,906
Pension scheme RIKEETE :
contributions R 140 140 .
p—
2,692 2,046
Exchange losses, net P& W E51E - R R 897 1,450
Impairment of investment KEMEZ
properties A — 446
Net rental income M WA F5E (200) (1,200)
At 31 March 2008, the Group had no forfeited RZFFENFZA=+—H AKEL
contributions available to reduce its contributions to EORWHE A B ERRFEZR _
pension schemes in future years (2007: Nil). KREAEER(ZZEZLF 8) o

19
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant

to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The

Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance, is as follows:

8.

EEMS

REFEHEXZIMEBERAAESF L™

MAN(TETRAND &

NI ST

161 REBRZAFEESMEFBOT -

Group
AEH
2008 2007
—EENE —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHETT
Fees: e -
Executive directors HITES = -
Independent non-executive L IETT
directors 5= 333 300
333 300
Other emoluments of WITESEZ
executive directors: HiMe -
Salaries, other allowances e - HMbEE
and benefits in kind B = 1,390 1,040
Discretionary bonuses IBTEAL 500 -
Pension scheme BRIKNEETE
contributions K 95 52
1,985 1,092
2,318 1,392
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8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 8. EEMS ()
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BYKHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive REAZNTELIFRITES 24
directors during the year were as follows: FAE
Group
EH
2008 2007
—BEBN\F —ETLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHETT
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai ECIES s 120 100
Mr. Lau Pok Lam ML 68 100
Mr. Ko Kwong Woon, Ivan = EB5EAE 65 100
Mr. Weng Yixiang SUAMESE 28 - —_—
Mr. Lu Xinsheng EITE A 26 - ——
Mr. Xiong Wei RRE R4 26 -
|
333 300
-
There were no other emoluments payable to the REEANLEENBLIERITEFTZE .
independent non-executive directors during the year MEMME (ZTTLF: &) - .
L
|

81
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (continued) 8.

(b) Executive directors

ESME (#)

Salaries, other
allowances
and benefits

(b) BITEE

Discretionary

Pension
scheme

Total

in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
Fe
Hig R BikE
BNAE® WA B MemE
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET TEx
2008
—2ENE
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles BRAEEE 600 300 45 945
Mr. Yu Wai Man REXEE 360 200 28 588
Mr. Zhang Zhidong REREE 277 - 14 291
Mr. Ng Eng Leng EEMEE 153 - 8 161
Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul Bt E - - - -
Mr. Sue Ka Lok BFRERE - - - -
Mr. Wilson Ng BRELE - - - -
Mr. Ng Wee Keat BEHELE - - - -
1,390 500 95 1,985
2007
-
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles BRABEE 520 - 26 546
Mr. Yu Wai Man RENAE 260 - 13 273
Mr. Ng Eng Leng EEMEE 260 - 13 273
Mr. Wilson Ng BEREE - - - -
Mr. Ng Wee Keat BRESE - - - -
1,040 - 52 1,092

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year.

AEEAYTEEEFLREMESKFAE
MEME 2 5 -
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INEEHES

The five highest paid employees during the year
included three (2007: three) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration of the remaining two (2007: two) non-
director, highest paid employees for the year are as
follows:

FAzHEuERHEEZH =6 (=
EELEF =) REST HEZH2
HBEEEHI R EXXH S c B2 T RAL
—ETLF W) FEESCRFES
ZHEFERT

Group
KEH
2008 2007
—EENE TETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHBT FHTT _
Salaries, other allowances e HRMREY i
and benefits in kind F# 473 456
N " T
Pension scheme contributions  3ER& st 214t 22 23%
| o
495 479 -
b

The remuneration of all non-director, highest paid
employees fell within the band of nil to HK$1,000,000
for the years ended 31 March 2008 and 2007.

During the year, discretionary bonuses of HK$500,000
were paid to or receivable by two of the five highest paid
employees of the Group (2007: Nil). No emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the five highest paid
employees as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office (2007: Nil).

BE-_ZZ)\FR-_ZFFLHF=A
=t+—HIEFE FIBFEEZESH —
& 8 2 8% 1997 F = %£1,000,000% T
ZHRBIA o

HJ

FR XNEENACEEHESEHR
M iz 2 B 15 7€ 4L /500,000 7T (=&
TLF E) AKEHMERTA AL
RimHEE IS ARSKE MBER
E@&T’E%i}ﬂﬁﬁﬂ»‘%ﬁ%z%&%@%ﬁ%&
ME(CETLF8) o




XIN CORPORATION LIMITED
, #F B = B ¥ A R 2 =

ANNUAL

i

R

REPORT 2008 F 3|

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA RS R R P et

31 MARCH 2008
—ET/\H#=A=+—8
10. TAX

10. Fi1E

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 17.5% (2007: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. No Hong
Kong profits tax has been provided during the year ended
31 March 2007 as the Group did not generate any
assessable profits arising in Hong Kong in that year. Taxes
on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the jurisdictions in
which the Group operates, based on existing legislation,

interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

BEEFERIARZFENCEBEL
IR ERBEFIRI75% (ZE T £
F:175%) 2 BEBE AREZEZ
TELF=A=F+—HIEFEARALER
BZFEERBZERW SN - IAE
B mpESFEREME - REMFDE
EEERREMNRE  SREFHE 2
BATER - TBRIEN  RAEEKLE
EB2BRZMEGH -

2008 2007
—EENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FET
Group: RER -

Current — Hong Kong BNEA — &8 3 -

Current — Elsewhere BUER — E 3 &
Charge for the year REEBIEZH 1,763 3,553
Overprovision in prior years BEFEEERE (1,111) -
Total tax charge for the year FABIA LR 655 3,553
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10. I (&)

A reconciliation of the tax expense/(credit) applicable to
the profit/(loss) before tax using the statutory rates for
the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rates is as follows:

RAARE REZHHE AR EMEDE
BEZEEREAEZBBAERN
(BR)ERHRAXL, (ER) BiZ
ERMEAEIRBEHZHENT

Group - 2008 rEE--ZENF
Mainland
Hong Kong  Singapore China Total
BB Eipiibs =N &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER THER TER TR
Profit/(loss) before tax BREAER/ (BR) (19,593) 11,557 (1,450) (9,486) —_—
Tax at the applicable tax rate  HEAREHE 2 HE (3,429) 2,080 (479) (1,828) :
T
Income not subject tg tax ﬁfﬁﬁ%ﬁ”ﬁ(?\ (1,400) (348) - (1,748)
Expenses not deductible for tax A/ HAFFE X 2,415 31 31 2,477
Tax losses not recognised RERHBER 2,417 - 448 2,865 -
Adjustment in respect of BT ERR - =
current tax of previous BHmE —
periods R 2 % - (1,111) - (1,111) .
Tax charge at the Group's RASEERHX :
effective rate HECHELL 3 652 - 655 _—
-_——
Group — 2007 AEE-—TTLF
Mainland
Hong Kong  Singapore China Total
N mg REIRE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 —
TR FTET TET THT
Profit/(loss) before tax BRHALEF, (B1) (15,903) 21,152 (1,606) 3,643
Tax at the applicable tax rate  REAMEHE 2FR (2,783) 3,807 (531) 493
Income not subject to tax BAERTMA (285) (284) - (569)
Expenses not deductible for tax A/ HIF A% 1,338 30 - 1,368
Tax losses not recognised KERHBER 1,730 - 53] 2,261
Tax charge at the Group's BAEEERHEFE
effective rate ZHRESH - 3,553 - 3,553
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11.

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

11.

AR EREFEAREER

The consolidated loss attributable to equity holders of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2008 includes
a loss of HK$5,142,000 (2007: HK$3,817,000) which
has been dealt with in the financial statements of the
Company (note 34(b)).

. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY

EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

12.

RARRVBREANREZHE-ST
)\ﬁz:ﬁ] :+*E|JJ:$EZ$AEE§
=IFE AEL 4R E 18 /B5,142,000%
T (ZZEZTLEF 3,817,000/ 7T) (M 5
34(b)) °

AAREERESFAEAREER
R

The calculation of basic loss per share amount is based
on the loss for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the Company for the year of HK$12,854,000
(2007: HK$7,904,000), and the weighted average of
792,002,196 (2007: 218,723,611) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share amounts for the years ended 31
March 2008 and 2007 have not been disclosed, as the
convertible notes and share options outstanding during
these years had anti-dilutive effects on the basic loss per
share amounts for these years.

EREABESBEDNEREBAFEZ
ARG ERFAEABRBGBRARFESE
12,854,000 T (Z T T £ F :
7,904,000 7T) R ARFEE &7 @R
zﬂu%%ﬁ%&mzoom%ﬁx(_ =+
4 218,723,611 5T &

HRATRRERE R FEARERITEZBR
BRUBE-_ZTTN\FR-_ZFTLF=H
ST -REFEZERERAEEAEAR
BEre AUHYERBEZMEFEZ
BREEERSHE -
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. W% -BERREE
Group AEH
Furniture,
fixtures,
equipment
Leasehold  and motor Construction ———
improvements vehicles in progress Total
&M RE -
MERE  RERARE EREIR &%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT THET FHET FAET
31 March 2008 —EE/\$=ZA=t—-H a—
At 1 April 2007: R-FTLFMA—H ———
Cost PR 25 1,650 32,288 33,963
- S —
Accumulated depreciation ZREIE
and impairment RfE (15) (1,497) (32,288) (33,800) ~ =
-
Net carrying amount BREHE 10 153 - 163 _—
At 1 April 2007, net of RZZZ+FWA—H - —
. N .
accumulated depreciation TD%?%%% —
and impairment KR E 10 153 - 163
» N L
Additions NE - 15 - 15
Depreciation provided REE -
during the year e 7 (149) - (156)
Exchange realignment 0 50 T - 4 - 4

At 31 March 2008, net of
accumulated depreciation
and impairment

R-BENF=ZA=1+—8§
kR 2RITE
XomE 3 23 - 26

At 31 March 2008:

R-BEN\F=A=+-8:

Cost ZZN 27 1,709 - 1,736 —
Accumulated depreciation REHE

and impairment RRE (24) (1,686) - (1,710)
Net carrying amount REFE 3 23 - 26

81
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

13. ¥ -BERRE(E)

Group rEE
Furniture,
fixtures,
Moulds, equipment
Leasehold  plantand  and motor Construction
improvements  machinery vehicles in progress Total
KE B
BER RE-
MmELE BE REBRAE EEIR Gl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR AT TET TEx
31 March 2007 “ERt¥=A=t-H
At 1 April 2006: RZZZREMNA-A:
Cost AR 24 88,302 1,592 32,288 122,206
Accumulated depreciation ~ ZFENE
and impairment KRifE (8)  (88302) (1340)  (32,288) 21,938)
Net carrying amount RE%E 16 - 252 - 268
At 1 April 2006, net of RZETFMHA—A -
accumulated depreciation R REHE
and impairment RoRE 16 - 252 - 268
Additions NE - - 15 - 15
Depreciation provided AEE
during the year nE 7 - (139) - (146)
Exchange realignment B F R 1 - 25 - 26
At 31 March 2007, netof RZZE+E=A=+—H"
accumulated depreciation R REHE
and impairment RorE 10 - 153 - 163
At 31 March 2007: R-FTLF=A=1—H:
Cost A 25 - 1,650 32,288 33,963
Accumulated depreciation ~ RFEITE
and impairment KRB (15) - (1,497) (32,288) (33,800)
Net carrying amount BREFE 10 - 153 - 163
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13. ¥ -BERFZEGE)

Company ¥ /N
Furniture, fixtures,
equipment and
motor vehicles
B RE
RERRE
2008 2007
—EENFE —ETLEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
At 1 April: MREA—A :
Cost BN 631 631
Accumulated depreciation 2REFE (622) (619)
Net carrying amount FREHE 9 12
At 1 April, net of RUA—B - Mk
accumulated depreciation 2EAE 9 12
Addition NE 15 -
Depreciation provided during ~ AFE
the year e (6) 3)
At 31 March, net of R=A=+—H -
accumulated depreciation Mk RBTE 18 9
At 31 March: W=A=+—H:
Cost DN 646 631
Accumulated depreciation ZENE (628) (622)
Net carrying amount FREHE 18 9

REPORT 2008

FH




XIN CORPORATION LIMITED
, #F B A7 = = =

i

R

ANNUAL

REPORT

= R R =

2008 F |

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 53R R Pt e
31 MARCH 2008
—EENF=ZA=+—H
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. REYE
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—BEBN\F —ET+EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Cost: ID%iINE
At 1 April MU A—H 23,398 21,867
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBRATR
(note 35(b)) (Ff7E35(b)) (24,629) -
Exchange realignment M 53R 1,231 1,531
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H - 23,398
Accumulated depreciation ZRENE
and impairment: KORfE -
At 1 April MU A—H 3,210 430
Depreciation provided RFEE
for the year e 1,541 2,312
Impairment RIE - 446
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBERAR
(note 35(b)) (K7E35(b)) (5,097) -
Exchange realignment b 5, R 346 22
At 31 March R=A=+—H - 3,210
Net book value: AREDFE -
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H - 20,188

At 31 March 2007, the Group's investment properties

with a carrying value of approximately HK$15,620,000

were pledged to secure general banking facilities granted

to the Group (note 27).

R-ZZBE+E=A=+—0  BEEEHY
15,620,000 L2 AEBILEMEEE
B RS AREBER 2 —RIBTE

B (Mf7E27) »




)gN ?ORPORATION LIMITED
V= g =

ANNUAL REPORT 2008 F R

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B3R R M oE
31 MARCH 2008
—EE\FE=A=1—H

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. Bt + B EFE

Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF “TTHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 p——
THERT T
Carrying amount at 1 April RO A—HZREEAE 31,903 30,544
Recognised during the year RARFE TR (520) (779)
Disposal of subsidiaries YUy NG
(note 35(b)) (K$7E35(b)) (33,035) - e
Exchange realignment b 5, 38 B 1,652 2,138 _
Carrying amount at 31 March ~ R=A=+—HZKEHEE - 31,903 o
Current portion mENEL S - (779)
|
Non-current portion SEMENER S = 31,124
L 5
The prepaid land lease payments were paid for the right BT AERB D RIERABELER
to use certain lands under long term leases in Mainland IR AFBAREZET 2 #F M m—
China. At 31 March 2007, the Group's prepaid land lease N - RZETH+F=A=+—HB FH —
payments with a carrying value of HK$2,149,000 were 182,149,000/ ;T 7 AL E A L3018
pledged to secure general banking facilities granted to EFECHERR  URSASEERZ
-_——

the Group (note 27).

Pursuant to various sale and purchase agreements (the
"S&P Agreements”) entered into between the Group
and an independent third party, during the years 1998
and 1999, the Group acquired certain land use rights
(the “Land”) in Mainland China with a carrying value
of HK$26,354,000 as at 31 March 2007. Pursuant to
the S&P Agreements, the Group was required to pay
an annual fee of HK$126,000 in respect of the Land
commencing from 2008 up to 2048 with a 20%
increment for every five years starting from 2008 (note
37). On 30 November 2007, the respective land use
rights were disposed of upon completion of the disposal
of subsidiaries (note 35(b)).

—RIRTTEE (ME27) -

R—AANFER—AANFERE - B
AEERBYE-HIUZEZBEEE
E ((EEWE] - NEER B Kk
WEE TRzl &t
HRZEE+F=HA=+—HB2KEE
£26,354,0008 7T - RIBEE E W& - B
—EENFHBEEE=THUNF AL -
AEBARZ T T F 1260008
LW EEBEZTEENFREGRFIEN
20% (MI3%37) - R ZZEZLF+— A
“tR ST ERERTALE
MEAmEEHEE (MHiE35(0)) °
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16. GOODWILL

16. BHE

i

R

Goodwill arising from the acquisition of additional 24%
interest in Xin Procurement & Trading Pte. Ltd. (“Xin
Procurement”) from the minority shareholder, Huang
& Co (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. ("HCSPL"), is related to the
procurement business cash-generating unit.

The recoverable amount of the procurement business
cash-generating unit has been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based
on financial budgets covering a five-year period approved
by senior management.

Key assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of the procurement business cash-generation
unit for 31 March 2008. The following describes each
key assumption on which management has based its
cash flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgets gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year.

Discount rate — The discount rate used (8%) is before
tax and reflects specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

During the year, Xin Procurement has operated under an
adverse environment and lost one of the key customers.
The directors of the Company evaluated the business
activity and future performance of Xin Procurement and
determined, with reference to the recoverable amount
of the procurement business cash-generating unit, that
an impairment provision on goodwill of HK$6,478,000
was required and charged to the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2008.

W —R L ERKERHuang & Co
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd. ([HCSPL) W fEXin
Procurement & Trading Pte. Ltd. ([ Xin
Procurement]) 2 B8 5N24%MRE & & 4 2
BEPRREBEBRCEEEN -

REXGHReEASEM 2 KRERED
REEEREEAEE ReREEEMR
HERELFRE W EREMTER
SnETEAMEE -

BT \FZA=t+—BrEBES

R B AR G A AR

BAXERSR - ATHAEEENRS

‘—%w AEBRENREER S
F“:

HEEHF — RIFEEENEREE
MEZBEMRBZELELSNEERE
FEAFEER I FHENE -

Fr#EE — FERAITEE(8%) R EA
KR BRE KB EALZRERR

A - Xin Procurement 8RR IR 5 T £
BWREEP—NETEREF - AREE
E:F{AXin ProcurementZ 27555 &) N ok
RER  WRERBEBReEELEN
2o kB ekERE  BETEREBEE-ZT
NEFEZRA=+—BIEFERBEERER
B # 6,478,000 L - EABEE R
mAERERNR
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AN AMOUNT 17. RHBATZRERER ()
DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES Bt B 1 B 2 TR
Company
N
2008 2007
—EENF —TTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LR+ LARKAERT - 68,709
Less: Provision for impairment & : Ji{E & - (68,709)
Due from subsidiaries R ENGIE 56,561 219,615
Less: Provision for impairment & : Ji{E B & (121) (211,501) —
T
56,440 8,114 -
-
Due to a subsidiary FET— KB A RIZKIA (15,827) -
40,613 8,114 '
The amounts due from and to subsidiaries included in HARHEELRRHE B EW N ER -
the current assets and current liabilities are unsecured, MEBATZIEAEEE 2B LERET -
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The BEHH o EEMMB AT Y &SRB ER _——

carrying amounts of these balances with subsidiaries,
after provision for impairment, approximate to their fair
values.

ERERIEAEEEQAFEEMES -
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AN AMOUNT
DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

17. RIB AR ZREREYR (B
MEARZE

XIE ()

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries are as

ARREBHBREZERWT -

follows:
Nominal value Percentage of
Place of of issued equity attributable
incorporation ordinary to the Company Principal
Name and operations share capital Direct Indirect activities
AR L ERITEER ARREGEERDL
£ RBE RAZHEE E# & TEEH
Able Market British Virgin Ordinary US$1 100 - Investment
Profits Limited Islands (“BVI") TERIET holding
EBRLRS REEKR
Asian Ocean Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 - Inactive
B ARDE] BB ERkR2ETT TEex
Wealth Fame International BVI Ordinary US$1 100 - Investment
Limited * EBEREE TaR1ET holding
HEBRAR AR REER
Xin Procurement Singapore Ordinary S$10,000 - 75 Supply and
N T3BA% 10,0005 7T procurement
of equipment,
goods and
services for
vessels
REEFHR
R Bk
e < e &
R
Poly Resources (Asia) Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Inactive
Limited * N LERIAT Emax
REER (TH) ARAF
*  These companies were newly incorporated in current year. tERAAARFEFEMA L
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17. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES AND AN AMOUNT 17. ARBRRAZRERER,(EH)
DUE FROM/(TO) SUBSIDIARIES (continued) Bt B8 2~ B 2 FRIE (88)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company EERR ERMAIIZARFINERA
which, in the opinion of the directors, principally affected HERFEZEEEFTEZE  SEK
the results for the year or formed a substantial portion AEBEEFEZIEH D -EFR
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other BRI EMIE AR S SR ERBR
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result T °
in particulars of excessive length.
18. INVENTORIES 18. &
Group
rEE
2008 2007
—EENF —ETALF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Goods held for resale FEEEZEm 1,234 1,970

FH
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19. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment
in advance is normally required. The credit period is
generally for a period of one month, extending up to
three to six months for major customers. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. Accounts
receivable are non-interest-bearing. The carrying amounts

19. FEURBR X

RIMEPFP —MRFBERNFIEIN  NEE
HEAXPESGRUAEERE  FE8
H—RRH—ER mEEEFAIAE
REZEZEXMBA -BHREFPHEEGSE
BERBE afEREEecHiniaig
B o BUER KT AT B » BUERF Z FRE
BERAEATEEBERS

F——
of the accounts receivable approximate to their fair
—
values.
E— |
An aged analysis of the accounts receivable at the REER REZAHRAKRERER
balance sheet date, based on invoice date, and net of JEWERFERER D ATAO T
allowances, is as follows:
.-

Group
re— rEE
T 2008 2007
——_— —EE2N\F —TTLF
S HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THETT
- 1
Within 30 days 30BN 4,962 18,939
— -
31 to 60 days 312600 4,912 18,960
- 61 to 90 days 61Z90H K 6,651 11,905
—— 91 to 180 days 91£180HA 19,943 25,337
— Over 180 days HBiE180H - 728
—_—
36,468 75,869
= .
Impairment A - -
|
e A
Total L 36,468 75,869
_——
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19. FEWEBRX (48)

The aged analysis of the accounts receivable that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

RBEZ BBERRZ R0

Group

rEE
2008 2007
—EENE ZERLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FET
Neither past due nor impaired R HI TRR VERIE 4,962 18,939
Less than 1 month past due wER DR —1E A 4,912 18,960
1 to 3 months past due BmEl—Z=={EA 26,594 37242
More than 3 months past due #HifRB =18 A - 728
36,468 75,869

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or
other credit enhancements over these balances.

REE TR ARERE 2 AR TY B 73T
HAY G RS SZ BAR B/

i S E 5K VAL 2 R T S 5 5
AREERGEBES I BIBERS
B REBELR AARNEERA
MR EEE ERERLFEARD
TR A AR 2 BURE - BB A
BE% 5 5 B4 1 LR EL 14 - A B 4
B34 % 4 495 FE IR D 2 ok B A D
i -

2008

FH

Wil
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20. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 20. EIRIE  RERHEMEWERRK
Group Company
rEE b NG|
2008 2007 2008 2007
“EEN\F —_TTtF ZBENF —TITLHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTER FAT FERT FAT
Prepayments and deposits ~ FBI B MIE® 3,714 985 272 357
Other receivables H {th B U BR B 322 120 = -
4,036 1,105 272 357

21.

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate
to receivables for which there was no recent history of
default.

LOAN RECEIVABLE

21.

NEBEBMEGHIME - A LEHRE
BZeREETI R R ERRFRAL
7 EWARK AR -

F& W & 5K

The effective interest rate of the Group's loan receivable
is 18% per annum, which is equal to the contractual
interest rate. The carrying amount of the loan receivable
approximates to its fair value.

The loan receivable, which is repayable within one year,
is neither past due nor impaired. In addition, the loan
is secured by a legal first charge on the assets of the
borrower and personal guarantees from two directors of
the borrower.

AEBERUERCERNETREF
18% * HER AKX - BRE R 2B
EEREQAFEERE -

JE U & 7R 3 R 380 B 7R ORE - HEZA T —
FREER - 1IN ZBERTIAERA
BEZE EERTRERAZMLE
SR ZEAERERA -
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22. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES 22. ERERE N F &R
Particulars of amounts due from/(to) related companies, FEU, () BERRFBEZFEBR
disclosed pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong BEBRATHEAE161BIEERLT ¢
Companies Ordinance, are as follows:
Group £ @
Maximum
amount _—
outstanding —_—
31 March during 31 March —_—
Name 2008 the year 2007
ZE2EN\FE FRAKRELS —TTLF
i =A=t+—-H EEe®E —A=1+—H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 B
B eE FTET FTET FET —
GT Capital Limited RETABRAR (i) 1,095 50,000 - ——
Huang Procurement Pte. Ltd. () 109 38,367 (18)
|
1,204 88,367 (18) -
L5
Company ZNN
Maximum h
amount "
outstanding -
31 March during 31 March —
Name 2008 the year 2007
BB\ FRAES —TTLF
2 ZA=+-8 BeeE —A=T—H
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BiEE TER THERT T —
GT Capital Limited BEERARDA 0) 1,095 50,000 - ——
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22. BALANCES WITH RELATED COMPANIES (continued) 22. EREAE QAR ()

Notes: B EE

(i)  During the year, the Company opened a securities trading () FRA AXRAEREL2MAERRQA
account with GT Capital Limited (“GT Capital”) for securities ((mEed) RLESFXSEKP-&
trading purpose. GT Capital is a company incorporated in EemMA—HMREBTMAZLEEE
Hong Kong and is engaged in securities brokerage, which FREEB AT ERPEEHE
is a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Yunnan Tin Minerals ¥EEERRARIZEZEMBAR M
Group Company Limited, a company subject to significant RARBIEERERALCEHIREEHE
influence by Mr. Suen Cho Hung, Paul, a director of the XEBARAFAABEATE N
Company. The amount due from GT Capital represents the KeEeMmzRE RRFRRES
unsecured cash deposit maintained in the securities trading EeMAVCESFRSERP NIRRT
account with GT Capital earning interest at prevailing 5 R EREUH B 2 EERB L FR -

market interest rates.

T

(i) Huang Procurement Pte. Ltd. (“Huang Procurement”) is (i) Huang Procurement Pte. Ltd.([Huang
a wholly-owned subsidiary of HCSPL. The balance with Procurement |) AHCSPLZ & & [ff B A
Huang Procurement is unsecured, interest-free and has no 8] o BdHuang Procurement” #% & & &
fixed terms of repayment. ER - 2ERTEEEERD -

The carrying amounts of the balances with related HPAENREHRCEEEREATEE

companies approximate to their fair values. BE -

23. INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS 23. ERESFBAVFEEIRIRE
Group and Company
AEBERADT
2008 2007
—BEBN\F —ET+EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAT
Listed equity investments, R ERE
at market value: 1RE
Hong Kong EE 5,340 -

The above equity investments at 31 March 2008 were RZZEENF=ZA=+—H Lk

classified as held for trading. REDDERFHIEESE -

100
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DEPOSITS 2. BERBEZEYRCEHRER
Group Company
rEEHE FNNE|

2008 2007 2008 2007
—EBENE —TT+F ZBENE —TTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FET FERT FAT
Cash and bank balances R RIBITES 8,099 28,225 4,930 24,827
Time deposits EBER 226,442 1,030 177,046 -
234,541 29,255 181,976 24,827

Less: Pledged time deposits & : B33 2 BT 5K
(note 36) (F3E36) (48,256) - - -
186,285 29,255 181,976 24,827

As at 31 March 2007, the Group had cash and bank
balances of HK$284,000 denominated in Renminbi
("RMB") deposited with banks in Mainland China. RMB
was not freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group was permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks
that are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposit is made for varying
periods of between 1 month and 1 year depending
on immediate cash requirements of the Group, and
earns interest at the respective time deposit rate. The
bank balances, time deposits and pledged deposits are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history
of default. The carrying amounts of the cash and bank
balances and the time deposits approximate to their fair
values.

RZBEELF=ZA=1+—H KTEBEMN
AR (TARSDINEZRE KRBT
%15 5284,0008 7T - WA B K
B2 RITIERTER - ARETBEEERK
BABINE o BIE R B KBEZ (HMNEE #
ERREE SERNEERBRTE) -
AEBFEBERAMEITINEZETS 2 R
T AR KR BINE o

FHRRIRITZRESREES BRITERM
KIRFHMNEREAE - EMERIIR
FARAEENKRESFERR —EAZ—
FAE - WIR AR E HIF50R = BRERA
B RITEF  EHFERAREEBFR
TyTF MRNEE R o B 3 83 R KIB 42 8%
ZRIT - R RRITHEFZRMERR
NFEEREE -

FH

TS T
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25. ACCOUNTS AN

D BILLS PAYABLE

An aged analysis of the accounts and bills payable at the

balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows:

25. EREREREERERE

REER  REZHHZEBNERLE

NERBEREDTWOT :

Group

rEH
2008 2007
—BEBN\F —ET+EF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THETT
Within 30 days 30BN 4,083 12,322
31 to 60 days 31260 2,184 3,410
61 to 90 days 61Z90H K 47 517
91 to 180 days 91£180HA 294 338
Over 180 days i 180H 276 4,432
6,884 21,019

The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are

normally settled on 60-day terms. The carrying amounts

of the accounts payable approximate to their fair values.

As at 31 Marc

h 2007, the Group had bills payable of

HK$265,000, which were within 30 days.

26. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

EMT BRI Tt B R —MR60R W&
R BNERARZEAEAEATEEBE
E - R-_ZTEL+E=F=+—H K&
B A e E $5265,0008 T - HERE A

30HA °

26. H b FE 13 AR X I B 5t 7R

Group Company
REE AAH

2008 2007 2008 2007
=E2ENF _TTHHF ZBENF _ZTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET THET FET
Other payables At JE T BR K - 349 - 6
Accruals et T IA 1,854 22,633 1,254 1,872
1,854 22,982 1,254 1,878
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK BORROWINGS . T ERITER
2008 2007
ZEENE —TTLF
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%)  Maturity HK$'000 rate (%) Maturity HK$'000
BRA= ZIHA TET EBERNX BIER TET
(%) (%)
Secured: BER -
Bank loans BITER - = = 6.138 1 year 11,550
Trust receipt loans  {EFEUUIEE R - - - 8 90 days 529
- 12,079
At 31 March 2007, the bank loan facilities of the Group RZZEELF=A=+—H FKEEZ E—
were supported by: RITRE AT EIEERER ———
. e |
(a) certain investment properties and prepaid land (a) ANEEARTE A (B 417,769,000/ 7T
lease payments of the Group in Mainland China ZETHEXEREWEREMN T
with an aggregate carrying value of approximately ih 30 & FRIE (s 145%15) : .
HK$17,769,000 (notes 14 and 15); ——
(b) corporate guarantees executed by a subsidiary of the (b) ARE—MEHEBRRMEL 2 RE p—
Company; R
L
() a corporate guarantee executed by HCSPL; (c) HCSPL#E Y 2 N AIHELR o
(d) a personal guarantee executed by Mr. Ng (Huang) d) EBBEE(RERFABFEIZA
Cheow Leng, a parent of certain directors of the NRAIETERZRXBERARAA
Company resigned during the year and an ex- FERR)ELZMBAER : &
substantial shareholder of the Company; and
(e) certain bank deposits of HCSPL of not less then (e) HCSPLZ2>525,000,0004 7T (18 %5

$$5,000,000 (equivalent to HK$25,750,000).

At 31 March 2007, all the interest-bearing bank
borrowings bore interest at fixed rates. The carrying

amounts of the Group's borrowings approximated to their

fair values.

725,750,000 7T) 2 & TR 1777

RZZEZLF=A=+—H " 5 8RT
fERE R AR EM KGR - AEEZ
R REEREAFEERE
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28. LOAN FROM A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER 28. — U D BBRREH 2 EFK
The loan was advanced by a minority shareholder of one Z ﬁ/uﬂﬂﬂ$§%@ﬁ¢'_ﬁ KB AR Z
of the Group's subsidiaries. The loan was unsecured and —f D AR R H R EEAR N R
interest-free. Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreement S $Ey§$%l§ﬁi7ﬁﬁﬁ W% Az D&
entered into between the Group and the minority BRI 2 BRER & - PBRRERE
shareholder of the relevant subsidiary, the minority T\é'_}x/\gﬁgigmﬂ ' BRIEB R
shareholder had agreed not to demand the repayment RAAENEREBPBRRE F NG
of the loan until the relevant subsidiary had the ability to ARBEREEEFIELZAE - TR
do so and had obtained prior consent from the Group for ARECEHEEXAER
the repayment of the loan. The loan was fully repaid by
the Group during the year.
29. DUE TO A MINORITY SHAREHOLDER 29. B — DB R 2 TR
The amount due to a minority shareholder is unsecured, A — R DR 2 RBL BEHF - %
interest-free and has no fixed terms of repayment. BREETERY - BN — D HEBER
The carrying amount of the amount due to a minority ZEHERERARFEEHES
shareholder approximates to its fair value.
30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 30. AR EE
Group and Company
FEBEREQF
2008 2007
—BENE —ETAF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 3E THET THET
Old Vision Century Note EmVision CenturyZ %

(as defined below) (EERTX) (@) - 13,658
HCSPL Note (as defined below) HCSPLEE (F&RTX) (b) - 5,878
New Convertible Notes and e AT AR SR AR Ko

New Vision Century Notes ¥TEVision CenturySR &

(as defined below) (EERTX) © 69,074 -

69,074 19,536




30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Notes:

(@) On 30 March 2006, the Company issued a convertible

note in the principal amount of HK$37,000,000 to Vision
Century, the former immediate holding company of the
Company, as part of the consideration for the release
and discharge of the Group from all of its obligations and
liabilities in respect of a loan advanced by Vision Century
(the "Old Vision Century Note"). Vision Century had the
right to convert the outstanding principal amount of the
convertible note into shares at any time before 29 March
2009 at the conversion price of HK$0.141 per conversion
share, which was adjusted to reflect the Company's open
offer. The Company may at any time prior to the maturity
date repay the whole or part of the principal outstanding
amount of the convertible note. The Old Vision Century
Note carried interest at a rate of 1% per annum, which
was payable semi-annually in arrears on 31 March and 30
September.

In March 2007, two conversions in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$20,000,000 of the Old Vision Century Note
were made by Vision Century, which resulted in a total
number of 141,843,970 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
being issued by the Company. After the conversions, the
outstanding principal amount of the Old Vision Century
Note was reduced to HK$17,000,000 as at 31 March 2007.

In July 2007, Vision Century and three independent
third parties converted an aggregate principal amount of
HK$17,000,000 of the Old Vision Century Note, which
resulted in a total number of 120,567,375 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each being issued by the Company. After the
conversion, no Old Vision Century Note was outstanding as
at 31 March 2008.

XIN CORPORATION LlMl TED
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30. TRREE (&)

GEE

(a)

RZZEZEXRF=ZA=Z+H X2H
[ A8 2 &) #) Al B 5 3% R A AlVision
Century# 77 7N & 5837,000,0007% 7T 2
MMRER (ERABRBRREBRAEER
FtVision CenturyFT 24 B 3R A & 2 —
PEERBE S RE ([EKVision
CenturyZ2 4% ]) ° Vision Centuryf # R
CEEAFZB T ABERBEESHE
REBZURBRBEASERBRRE
FRABBHINBETER ARG
MBEBREDABRURBRARG Z A
& o AN A B R B HA A AT ] B RS
BRETMBREBRREERSE2BX
5 o B HVision CenturyZ= i 3% F F| &
—EifE ARSF=ZA=+—A8K
NA=Z+BELFIEHERF—IK -

RZZTZTLF=H Vision Centuryi
1T R MR & 48 §820,000,0008
JL Z & #Vision CenturyZ & 3 ¥ - &
BUR R B #ATE $£141,843,97008 T IR
HE0.01B Tz LMk - RE#E - R
—EELF=ZA=Z+—H  HKREE
2 EMVision CenturyZ A& EE A
4>Z 17,000,000/ 7T ©

RZ=ZZZLF £ A - Vision Century
R=ZZBUE=ZFTABRASBER
7000,000§%77:Z%‘EI’WiSion Century2
S éﬁzﬁ’“ﬂ%&éﬁ%@%ﬂzojeuﬁ
& HxETEOOL%Eth %o R
B RZZEZNEF=A :+_ =i
E1a] 1% R 77 68 2 & H)Vision Century®
1% -

2008

Z =7
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

30. OB REE (F)

Notes: (continued)

(b) On 28 February 2007, the Company issued a convertible

©

note in the principal amount of HK$7,126,560 to HCSPL,
as consideration for the acquisition of an additional 24%
interest in Xin Procurement and the rights of and benefits
in a shareholder’'s loan of S$120,000 (equivalent to
HK$618,000) from HCSPL, the minority shareholder of Xin
Procurement (the "HCSPL Note"). HCSPL had the right to
convert the outstanding principal amount of the HCSPL
Note into shares at any time before 27 February 2010 at
a conversion price of HK$0.17 per conversion share. The
Company may at any time prior to the maturity date repay
the whole or part of the principal outstanding amount of
the convertible note. The HCSPL Note carried interest at
1% per annum, which was payable semi-annually in arrears
on 31 March and 30 September. On 17 April 2007, HCSPL
converted the entire HCSPL Note of principal amount
of HK$7,126,560, which resulted in a total number of
41,920,941 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each being issued
by the Company. After the conversion, no HCSPL Note was
outstanding as at 31 March 2008.

On 20 June 2007, the Company entered into (i) a
conditional placing agreement with Interchina Securities
Limited (the "Placing Agent”) in relation to the placing
by the Placing Agent, on a best effort basis, of the
Company's convertible notes with principal amount up
to HK$100,000,000 (the “New Convertible Notes") to
independent third parties (the “Placing Agreement”); and
(i) a conditional option agreement with Vision Century,
pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed
to grant to Vision Century an option exerciseable during
the option period to subscribe for convertible notes to
be issued by the Company with principal amount up to
HK$100,000,000 (the “New Vision Century Notes") at a
consideration of HK$10 (the "Option Agreement”). The
terms of the New Convertible Notes will be identical to
those of the New Vision Century Notes. The completion
of the Placing Agreement, the Option Agreement and
the issue of the New Convertible Notes and the New
Vision Century Notes were approved by the independent
shareholders of the Company in the special general
meeting of the Company held on 6 August 2007.

MiEE - ()
(b) RZZEZ+HF_R=+N\B KRAIM

©

HCSPLEE 1T AN € 587,126,560/8 T 2 Al #2
fRZ= 4% - E&[AXin Procurement 48
fi% BHCSPLUL B8 5AXin Procurement” %8
A24004E 25 M % B B 37120,0003% 7T (47
£ 14618,0007%8 7T) 2 1 F & F & 2
& ([HCSPLEE]) - HCSPLE R = Z
—FFE-A-+LARERIEYNREES
ZHCSPLREEAR S BRIBREGR LR
BD0N7B TR ARG - A AR AR
) E B AR R EE TR B R R E
BRASE2HNE S - HCSPLEEZF
ME—E:E  BEREF=RA=+—H
ENA=+HEESFFHHEIA—R-
RZZEZTLFWMA++H  HCSPLK #
AN & 58 /57,126,560 7T Z & #BHCSPL
FE - SRR A BITHEE41,920,941
P EREECOIB Ly AL - KR
% R_EENF=ZA=t—HUEF
o] R AR 1T 88 Z HCSPLER % -

R-ZZTEZTLFNAZ+TH  AAF()E
PEHFERAR (RERE] T
—IHAEGKHREHE NEBEHBES
RERZRBHRBEHAZEE RBILE=
7 B & 78 % % £ % 100,000,000/ 7T 2
RARARREE ([FHATRREE])
(B & #a]) » R&(i)EVision Century
RN —IEARGERERE  BUA
AR B A B R E B TVision Century
—IB BB BE #E - MVision Centuryf& It A
ERRERBRITERRERRE
BITRBARABFETASERS
100,000,000/ 7t 2 AJ #2 ik 52 45 ([ 3 #9
Vision CenturyZ & |) ([HE R ]) ©
E) AR R 2 5 RCE T A Vision
CenturyZR & 2 (& KR - B & & K
BRERZE TR ARBEITHN R
B 4R 2 ) Vision Century®R= & - 27
ZEZEFNARNBEITZARAR
REFRIK & AR R IB B AL -




XIN CORPORATION LlMl TED

On 17 September 2007, the Company issued the first
tranche of the New Vision Century Notes in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 to Vision Century.
Vision Century had the right to convert the outstanding
principal amount of the New Vision Century Notes into
shares of the Company at any time before 16 September
2009 at a conversion price of HK$0.28 per share. The
Company may at any time prior to the maturity date repay
the whole or part of the principal outstanding amount of
the convertible note. The New Vision Century Notes were

interest-free and wholly repayable by 16 September 2009.

RZZBZELFNA+TEH KARFE
1778 & #8 %8 /340,000,000 T 2 &
— #t #1 KyVision Century2 #& FVision
Century ° Vision CenturyB R =%
NENA+TSBAEMER - ZRR
1B @ 1%0.2878 7T #% ¥ HyVision CenturySE
BHREERASBEEBARRATMR
e RRABATRE A ﬁLE@E% fil 18
ﬁ—ﬁﬁ‘ﬂﬁm}?ﬂifé@ e
o FTH)Vision CenturymTFTﬁ% S
—EENFAATRERMEHER -

EZ2 -V - = = =
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued) 30. AIMRERE (&)
Notes: (continued) Mzt : ()
(c) (continued) (o) (#&)
Pursuant to the Placing Agreement and the Option BRIBREHERBRERZ  FOA
Agreement, the New Convertible Notes and the New Vision % 2= & & T EVision Century®= & A
Century Notes are convertible into ordinary shares of the ZOFBRBETRO28BTHIRARR
Company at an initial conversion price of HK$0.28 per Al ER -
share.
On 17 September 2007, the Company issued the first RZZEZLFNA++HH ARAET
tranche of the New Convertible Notes in an aggregate N & # 58 /40,000,000 T 2 % —#t
principal amount of HK$40,000,000 to six independent %EE’JT?‘*HXW?J’E%/\%?%*W 7 (TR
third parties (the "Subscribers”) for general working capital ﬁ%/\l) CABMEBARR —REEESR o —
of the Company. The Subscribers had the right to convert RBAABENR_ZTZ ﬂiﬂﬁ +75H
the outstanding principal amount of the New Convertible il E o] B - 4RI AR (B B AR0.287 TTi§
Notes into shares of the Company at any time before FHABRBRER M AREERSTERL .
16 September 2009 at a conversion price of HK$0.28 per BMABARDERG - ARB R AEHAE _—
share. The Company may at any time prior to the maturity AERNKEEEATRREBERERR —
date repay the whole or part of the principal outstanding CHEHXHD FHABRKRERT
amount of the convertible note. The New Convertible RERERZZEZENFANATBHA L
Notes were interest-free and wholly repayable by 16 TEIEE - = =
September 2009. _—
On 18 September 2007, the Subscribers converted the RZZEZEFNA+TNEH BREAR
entire principal amount of HK$40,000,000 of the first BRE-BFTNITRREBEZ2HESE —
tranche of the New Convertible Notes, which resulted in a %840,000,0008 7T * B AR FIEITHR -_—
total number of 142,857,141 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 142,857,141k B IR A E0.01/# T 2 —
each being issued by the Company. LR -
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30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

30. OB REE (8)

Notes: (continued)

©

(continued)

On 18 September 2007, Vision Century converted the
entire principal amount of HK$40,000,000 of the first
tranche of New Vision Century Notes, which resulted in a
total number of 142,857,142 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each being issued by the Company.

On 7 November 2007, the Company issued the
second tranche of the New Convertible Notes and the
New Vision Century Notes in the principal amount of
HK$60,000,000 each to ten independent third parties
(the "New Subscribers”) and Vision Century, respectively.
On 8 November 2007, the New Subscribers converted an
aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000 of the New
Convertible Notes, which resulted in a total number of
35,714,285 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each being issued
by the Company.

On 20 November 2007, Vision Century transferred
the New Vision Century Notes of principal amount of
HK$60,000,000 to Global Wealthy Limited (“Global
Wealthy"), a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr.
Suen Cho Hung, Paul, a director of the Company.

On 17 January 2008, Global Wealthy converted the
New Vision Century Notes in the principal amount of
HK$30,000,000, which resulted in a total number of
107,142,857 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each being issued
by the Company.

After the above conversions, the outstanding principal
amounts of the New Convertible Notes and New Vision
Century Notes were reduced to HK$50,000,000 and
HK$30,000,000, respectively, as at 31 March 2008.

The fair value of the liability component was estimated

at the issuance date using an equivalent market interest

rate for a similar note without a conversion option. The

residual amount is assigned as the equity component

and is included in shareholders’ equity.

GEE

©

BEIRZH
A A N HRE
KRG - FREBEED

gl

(&)

(&)

WZZ2EZALF A+ /UH - Vision
Century i, # % — #L ¥7 & Vision Century

= §E 2 % # K € 540,000,000/ 7T -
BYAN A EITHRE42,857142%F
R EEO0.01E T2 LAk -

RZZEZELF+—ALH KX2FMA
TEBULE=H ([FREAD FEITR
% %860,000,000# JT 2 % — #it ¥1 &9 7]
AR Z= 4% I [@)Vision Century 17 K &
%160,000,000/% 7T 2 % — #it #7 HyVision
CentuyR 1B - RZZEZELF+—AN
H - ¥R AR S 4%10,000,000
BT Z e A R R - EEUR QA
1T 4R 8135,714,285x F AR E(E0.0178
T2 E R -

RZZEZT+LF+—A=+H " Vision
Century® & /K £ %860,000,000/8 7T
2 ¥71®)Vision CenturyZ #& FGlobal
Wealthy Limited ([ Global Wealthy]) -
Global WealthyJ5 — 8 B A& A 7] & & &
HtEE2EERBEE 2 AR

RZZZENF—HA++H  Global
Wealthy 3, # 7K & %830,000,000/% 7T 2
¥ HVision CenturyZ 4% - B A Q A

TITH80107,142,857/% & I A {B0.01
Bz Lmk o
REMZELBE RZZEZNEF=

A=+—H #FWAARZERTH
Vision CenturyZ iz WM AkEELRAS
FE D B8l Z=50,000,000% T &
30,000,0007% 7T °

ZAFEBEIRNETBBRA
IRREZEURBZEETS
D REEEB DR

s

FHABCR#E o




30. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continued)

Notes: (continued)

The convertible notes issued have been split as to the

liability and equity components, as follows:
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30. TRREE (&)

NF=ZA=+—H

fsE : ()

ERTZABBRERD DR RES ME

New New Vision 0ld Vision FE—
Convertible Century Century HCSPL
Notes Notes Note Note Total
HHTRR i #Vision EHVision —
ZE  CentuyEE  CenturyRE HCSPLE At —_—
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FEL FEL FEL FEL
Liability component at RZTET ENA—H S
1 April 2006 ZEBEHA - - 26,674 - 26,674 —_—
—
Nominal value of the convertible HE-_TTtF=R=1-A
note issued for the year ended IFEEBHTARRER o
31 March 2007 ZEEE - - - 7,126 7126 .
Equity component Bain - - - (1,282) (1,282) —
Interest expense for the year AEEFSHEY - - 3272 39 3311 .
Interest paid for the year AEEEHFIE - - (270) 5) (275)
Conversion of convertible note RATBRREE - - (16,018) - (16,018) - =
—_——
Liability component at 31 March RZZZHE=A=1—-AK —
2007 and 1 April 2007 “ZRLENA-BERHS - - 13,658 5,878 19,536
-
Nominal value of the convertible WREERENT -
notes issued in current year REEE 7 EEE 100,000 100,000 - - 200,000 —
Equity component EaHn (15,812) (15,813) - - (31,625) —
Direct transaction costs attributable ERBIEEERR S
to the liability component AR (528) (316) - - (844)
Interest expense for the year AEEFEAY 1,486 1,327 554 21 3,388
Conversion of convertible notes RATBRREER (41,975) (59,295) (14212) (5,899) (121,381) _—
Liability component at RZZE\F=A=1+-H
31 March 2008 2 BB 43,171 25,903 - - 69,074
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31.

DEFERRED TAX

31.

iF 3E B 15

32.

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$46,676,000 (2007: HK$34,986,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect
of these losses as they have arisen in companies that
have been loss-making for some time.

The Group and the Company had no unprovided deferred
tax at 31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007.

AEBREAEAEE M EBIE
/46,676,000 L (Z 2 F + &F -
34,986,000/ 7T,) - A] fEFR B A VR IR S 6
BEBEZRATZARERDEF - N&E
BV EAZEEERRELEHRIBEEE
HAZEEBEBEDAEHEEE—RERZ
Bt 8 A Bl EEAE o

RZZEZNF=ZA=+—BEZZZt
FZA=1T—H8 AKERARRHE
EARIEREEN A -

SHARE CAPITAL 32. B
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Authorised: JEEMA
10,000,000,000 10,000,000,0008%
(2007: 10,000,000,000) —EE L4 1 10,000,000,0008% )
ordinary shares FREME0.01ETT
of HK$0.01 each 2 EEK 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRBRRE
1,069,863,767 1,069,863,767h%
(2007: 474,708,026) —ET L 474,708,0260%)
ordinary shares SRRMEEC.01ET
of HK$0.01 each 2 EBRK 10,699 4,747
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 32. BA& (&)
A summary of the transactions of the Company's issued BHE-_ZZTLFR-ZEZENF=A
ordinary share capital during the years ended 31 March =T-BULEFEETABLARRR
2007 and 2008 is set out below: EBRTEARERAZSH 2 X5 E2H
T
Issued capital 2 BITRAE
Number of Issued Share
shares share premium
in issue capital account Total
BRT
RABE ERTRE ROBER A&t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fitat FET TET FET
"""""""""" —
At 1 April 2006 i ngﬁmﬂ = 82,704,014 827 - 827
T
Issued on Open Offer REEEME
(as defined below) (E%QDT) (a) 248,112,042 2,481 27292 29,773 —
Issued on conversion of AR B -
convertible notes et (b) 141,843,970 1,418 20,106 21,524 ——
Share options exercised ~ {T{EBERIERTE T (© 2,048,000 21 602 623 —
——
474,708,026 4,747 48,000 52,747
=
N -
Share issue expenses RIDEITRX - - (1,765) (1,765)
|
At 31 March 2007 and RZBTLF=ZRA=1+—HK
1 April 2007 “TELFMNA—A 474,708,026 4,747 46,235 50,982
Issued on conversion of  AIRREE A
convertible notes FTEAT (d) 591,059,741 5911 139,130 145,041
Share options exercised ~ {T{EBERIERTETT (e) 4,096,000 41 1,206 1,247
As at 31 March 2008 R-BEN\F=A=1—H 1,069,863,767 10,699 186,571 197,270
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 32. BA& (&)

(a) On 16 October 2006, the Company effected an (a) RZEERF+A+H &R
open offer of 248,112,042 new shares of HK$0.01 ETRAMRAEE &R ZA /HHT%
each at HK$0.12 per share (the “Open Offer") to E—RBEROEZR=ZREERHZ
its qualifying shareholders on the basis of three X BERO.I2BTAEEER
offer shares for every share held on that date. A% 3R B £248,112,042 R G I A B
Cash proceeds of approximately HK$29,773,000, 0.01BTZH MM ([RFHEE]) -
before the related expenses, were received by the Fr 1538 & 5/ 18 £929,773,000/% 7T
Company. (RETBEMARAX) ERARRAKE -

(b) In March 2007, two conversions in an aggregate (b) R=ZFZLH=F - Vision Century
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 of the Old EEREBESRI4E L #
Vision Century Note were made by Vision Century 1T/ R K AN & 48 %620,000,000
at conversion price of HK$0.141 per share, 77T 2 & BVision CenturyZ & %,
resulting in the issue of 141,843,970 ordinary o BRI QR E E1T141,843,970
shares of HK$0.01 each. The conversion resulted REREECOIE T ZERR - &
in an increase in share capital and share premium BB R AR R E RS 58
account by approximately HK$1,418,000 and N #J1,418,000% 7T £220,106,000
HK$20,106,000, respectively. BT o

(c) The subscription rights attaching to 2,048,000 (c) 2,048,00017 & % 4 Bt 75 2 58 B 4&
share options were exercised at the subscription ERABEEERO2IBTITHE -
price of HK$0.23 per share, resulting in the issue B3 172,048,000 F IR E &
of 2,048,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each for 001 BTz ERmEK REeBRER
a total cash consideration of HK$471,000 and the 471,000 7T+ JA & #5152,000/%

transfer of HK$152,000 from share option reserve to
the share premium account.

TRBRERFEERZRN G E
E\EO
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32. BAR (&)

(d) In April 2007, HCSPL converted the entire HCSPL

Note of principal amount of HK$7,126,560 at a
conversion price of HK$0.17 per share, resulting in
the issue of 41,920,941 ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each. The conversion resulted in an increase in share
capital and share premium account by approximately
HK$419,000 and HK$6,759,000, respectively.

In July 2007, Vision Century and three independent
third parties converted an aggregate principal
amount of HK$17,000,000 of the Old Vision Century
Notes at a conversion price of HK$0.141 per share,
resulting in the issue of 120,567,375 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each. The conversions resulted
in an increase in share capital and share premium
account by approximately HK$1,207,000 and
HK$17,704,000, respectively.

In September 2007, the Subscribers and Vision
Century converted an aggregate principal amount
of HK$80,000,000 of the New Convertible Notes
and the New Vision Century Notes at a conversion
price of HK$0.28 per share, resulting in the issue
of 285,714,283 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.
The conversions resulted in an increase in share
capital and share premium account by approximately
HK$2,857,000 and HK$75,660,000, respectively.

In November 2007, the New Subscribers converted
an aggregate principal amount of HK$10,000,000
of the New Convertible Notes at a conversion
price of HK$0.28 per share, resulting in the issue
of 35,714,285 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.
The conversions resulted in an increase in share
capital and share premium account by approximately
HK$357,000 and HK$9,645,000, respectively.

In January 2008, Global Wealthy converted a
principal amount of HK$30,000,000 of the New
Vision Century Notes at a conversion price of
HK$0.28 per share, resulting in the issue of
107,142,857 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each. The
conversions resulted in an increase in share capital
and share premium account by approximately
HK$1,071,000 and HK$29,362,000, respectively.

(d RZZTZLFMWH  HCSPLIZ#

BMESROINZTBETHBASER
7,126,560/ 7T 2 & #fHCSPLE
B B I1T41,920,941 % & K
HECOVE Tz ERmk g
BAR A K R0 = B R 9 B A4
419,000/ 7t 6,759,000/ It °

RZZZEEZELF+ A - Vision
CenturyR = 2B B = Fizix
BRESROI4ITELHBAS
4% % 517,000,000 T2 E X
Vision CenturyZ= & = & B3 17
120,567,375 & IR H E0.01/8 7T
ZERR o AIBmEHRARRKRG G
& BR » Bl 3 A0 491,207,0007 7T &
17,704,000/ 7T, ©

RZZEZELFNAA REAR
Vision Century#Z 2% (& & 1%0.28%
TT 9 Bl W # N & 42 %880,000,000
/%EZ%EE’J‘HM EE: 9 &0
Vision CenturyZ=E & - B B3 17
285,714,283 % & % M {BO. 015% fz
ZEBIR o RIBMEBRA KRG R
& BR 7 Bl 4% 11 492,857,000/ 7T &
75,660,000/ 7T °

RZZBEZLEF+—A - FREA
RBRETRO28B T B AS
4%5810,000,0003 JT 2 # &) 7] #&
REE - BEHEIT35714285K T
REEOVEIL 2 EBAR - HikE
AR A K B0 E B RS B ML
357,000/ 7T }2.9,645,000% 7T ©

RZZFTEZETNF —H Global
Wealthy#z # % & & 12 0.28/8 7T
H K £ %30,000,000/% 7T 2
KJVision CenturyZ: & « & B 317
107,142,857 % = % ™ 50. ork%fn
2 EBI o RIRE B &R R

& BR 2 B 4Z H1 491,071,000/ 7T &
29,362,000/ 7T °

FH
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32. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

32.

B ()

(e) The subscription rights attaching to 4,096,000 share
options were exercised at the subscription price of
HK$0.23 per share (note 33), resulting in the issue
of 4,096,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
for a total cash consideration of HK$942,000 and
the transfer of HK$305,000 from the share option
reserve to the share premium account.

33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

33.

(e) 4,096,00017 EER T H 2 RIE
BETE  REERER23E
7t (B 5E33) + B B8 174,096,000
BEREEOVE T EEBA - ¥
N 4218 & X {2942,000/8 7T A & #%
3050008 IR EREERE
B8 19 B B o

fB B 5T &

i

R

114

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
"Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Company's directors,
including independent non-executive directors, other
employees of the Group, suppliers of goods or services
to the Group, customers of the Group, the Company's
shareholders, and any minority shareholders in the
Company's subsidiaries. The Scheme became effective
on 30 December 2002 and, unless otherwise cancelled
or amended, will remain in force for 10 years from that
date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme shall not
exceed 109%, in nominal amount, of the issued share
capital of the Company on the adoption date of the
Scheme (the “Scheme Mandate Limit"). Options which
have lapsed in accordance with the terms of this Scheme
will not be counted for the purpose of calculating the
Scheme Mandate Limit. The maximum number of shares
issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to
1% of the shares of the Company in issue. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders' approval in a general meeting.

ARRRIRBEEETE ([ E]) - &%
AEIZEMEHAEELENNELE
BZRER2EERTRBRO® - %
HEIZEERZEERRARAZES
(BREBUIFFATES) - AREHME
B -AKEZEmIRHHEER A&
BzEP ARAKRREARRBNE A
A ZERMDEBER - ZFAER_TT
FT-A=+HER  BRIESTREEH
&5 - DRIBRH R EZ B 10% -

RIBZTEI AR h 2 B4 ™] T 817
ZEMNREZNEBBARRAZE RS
ARA S EHTRATEZ10% ([5813%
R -t EERERER X T
FEARB AT IR 2 B - X
E+ @A BMERN - RIEZE S %
TTRABER2EEZRNEREER
RABDEHITRMDZ1% - LERLE
A8t ER < BB RHE - BAKERRR
BERARE LHfE -




33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)
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33, BERRESTEI (@)

Share options granted to any director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors of the Company.
In addition, any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director
of the Company, or to any of their associates, in excess
of 0.19% of the shares of the Company in issue at any
time and with an aggregate value (based on the closing
price of the Company's shares as stated in the daily
quotation sheets issued by The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on the date of the
grant in excess of HK$5,000,000, within any 12-month
period, is subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in
a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 30 days from the date of the offer, upon payment
of a nominal consideration of HK$1 in total by the
grantee. The exercise period of the share options granted
is determinable by the directors or up to the expiry date
of the Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the directors in their absolute discretion, but in any event
shall not be less than the greatest of (i) the closing price
of the Company's shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheet issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant
of the share options; (i) the average Stock Exchange
closing price of the Company's shares as stated in the
daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant of share options; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Company's share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders' meetings.

BRPARBMEMES TETHABSK
FTERRRESE 2T ABEA L ZEBR
EEKARNRBIYIFNTESE it
o AN MAAR EERBLBLIE
POTEERFREZAMBEALET
A B R #E - (WA E 1218 B 2 i
BARNAREAEREZEITRGN 20.1%
RBEE(ZEABERIMARAA
(B2 RRH BT S HR
BRABZARARBRMDKTEH) B
#%5,000,0007% 7T Rl 78 £€ A% 3R A IR R
AREEhHLE-

BhEREZZZAIRESRA ML
I0REM ARABAINRBEAR
Baf1B T MREOBEREZITED
MEFEEXZERA (UAREE
RE) L -

TEEDNVHESFSE2RETE  HEILRFRE
RATE&REE - (DAR BN 8ERE
RO BREBRXAMEERERMB K
mE(RONEEBRERL B S
AR A& % BB TS B RERIR
ZFHWEE  RGi)AR R ZBRH
18 °

BAEYEE TESAAEDRKE XK
EBRRARGREZERN -
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

33. BRAESTE (@)

The movement of share options under the Scheme

RAFEER - Zet 8 T ZEKR

E LB N

during the year is presented as follows: I
Price of the Company's shares™*
Number of share options FRARBER
EREHE Exercise Immediately
Name or At Exercised At price At beforethe At exercise
category 1 April during 31 March  Date of grant of  Exercise period of share  grant date exercise date of
of participant 2007 the year 2008 share options* of share options options**  of options date options
SaENA RIZBLE RER R-BENE EhE EhRE BRE  RERE  REGE RBRE
HER mA-H % ZA=t-8 R B fEs  EE*  RHAH HEAM  fERH
HK$ HK$ HKS HK$
pershare  pershare  pershare  pershare
siin  BREr  SkEr  BREx
Directors
£
Mr. Yu Wai Man 1,024,000 (1,024,000) - 29-07-2005 29-07-2005 to 0.230 0.295 0325 0320
REXAE Sk 28-07-2007
tAZThA it 5k
tRZThAZE
Z2RtE
tAZTNH
Mr. Wilson Ng 1024000 (1,024,000 - 29-07-2005 29-07-2005 to 0230 0295 0.360 0355
BEEAE “£%1n% 28:07-2007
tAZThA ZTERE
tRAZThRZE
i 3
tA=tNR
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Price of the Company's shares™*

Number of share options FRARBER™
BREHA Exercise Immediately
Name or At Exercised At price At beforethe At exercise
category 1 April during 31 March Dateofgrantof  Exerciseperiod  ofshare  grantdate  exercise date of
of participant 2007 the year 2008 share options*  of share options  options™* of options date options
SRENA it & S:3 RER R-BRNE RRE BRE BRE RMBRE  REGE  RBRE
8 mA-H i€ =ZR=t-A RiAH 8 TRE*  REEW BEA  fERH
HKS HKS HKS HKS
pershare  pershare  pershare  per share
ghtr  sREr  BRET  BRER
Directors (continued)
g2 ()
Mr. Ng Wee Keat 1024000 (1,024,000) - 29-07-2005 29-07-2005 to 0230 0295 0.360 0355
AR “E%0F 28072007
tAZThA _TEnE
tAZthRZE
“RRtE
tAZTNH
Mr. Ng Eng Leng 1,024,000 (1,024,000) - 29-07-2005 29-07-2005 to 0230 0295 0.360 0355
aERLE “EER% 28:07-2007
tAZThA It S Sk
tAZThA
FIERYE
tAZ+NA
4,096,000 (4,096,000) -

FH

W
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33. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

33. BRAESTE (@)

* The share options granted to directors are vested upon
granted.

**  The exercise price of the share options is subject to

adjustments in the case of capitalisation of profits or
reserve, rights or bonus issues, consolidation, subdivision
or reduction of the share capital or other alternative in the
capital structure of the Company. During the year ended
31 March 2007, the exercise price of the share options was
adjusted from HK$0.295 per share to HK$0.23 per share
as a result of the Open Offer (note 32(a)).

***  The price of the Company's shares disclosed as at the
date of grant of the share options is the closing price as
stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange on the trading day immediately prior to the date
of grant of the options. The price of the Company's shares
immediately before the exercise date of the share options
is the weighted average of the Stock Exchange closing
prices immediately before the dates on which the options
were exercised over all of the exercises of options within

the disclosure line.

The 4,096,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 4,096,000 ordinary shares of
the Company, new share capital of HK$41,000, share
premium of HK$1,206,000 and the reduction in the
share option reserve of HK$305,000, as further detailed
in note 32(e) to the financial statements.

At the balance sheet date, the Company had no share
option outstanding under the Scheme.

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, on 30 April 2008,
a total of 64,120,000 share options were granted to
certain staff, directors and consultants of the Group in
respect of their services to the Group in the forthcoming
year. These share options vest on 30 April 2008 and
have an exercise price of HK$0.188 per share and an
exercise period ranging from 30 April 2008 to 29 April
2010. The closing price of the Company’s shares on the
trading day immediately prior to the date of grant was
HK$0.185 per share.

* O RTEEZBRERNRLERE

WA REEETEAR  ETHRSK
IKEAR - IRHDE Pk D kIR AR Bl
WK ARB 2R AEREE Efth &

B RAEREZITEEETAE R
HE-_ZTZ+LF=-A=+—HILFE
NoEREZTEEEEAREEM
B EAR02958 THEBEFRR0.234E T
(MF3E32()) °

o RBRERDAMREZARFRN
BRI NEZBRERL B S
— A% 5 BERR 2SR MERRT
WZWHE - ZEBERETER S
ZARDNARHERTDEEBRETE
B 5 Al 2 B 22 P A < 25 U T (B B A
NEBEBEANMAITE 2 BRE -

7 F AN 17 24,096,00017 B8 A% 42 8 2
% 174,096,0000% A~ & 7] & i@ i - 37 A%
841,000 7T~ B 9 4 81,206,000
7T N H R B AR #E {7 #5305,0007% 7T - 40
B SRR M TE32(e) i — HRfilt ©

REER  RIEZE > AABRLER
Pt 15 RITIE ©

HERB RZZEEN\FNA=+AH"
4 64,120,000 EREE R AEEH
TREE ZEERBEMRTEERAREE
RHEZEBEBMETFZEAL - ZEFER
ER_ZEZEN\FOA=1THBHE 17
FEAEFR0ISSHE L THEHHE-Z
ENFNA=ZF+EBEZEZE_ZT—ZFFWNA
ZHARB - ARAROREERL A
Bl — B2 5 A 2 W B & EK0.185%
e

il
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On 7 May 2008 and 15 May 2008, 6,208,000 share
options in aggregate were exercised by certain staff
and consultants of the Group, at an exercise price of
HK$0.188 per share, which resulted in the issue of
6,208,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01
each.

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 57,912,000 share options outstanding
under the Scheme, which represented approximately 5%
of the Company’s shares in issue as at that date.

RZZBEENFRAACEEZZEZENFH
B+HH " & 6,208,000 ERED
BAEEE TIEE RERITE  17#E
A ER0.188% 7T + & B 176,208,000
BREREEOVELZ AR A LR -

RAB ISR FAE R BIEZAE
XA R H57,912,00015 85 3% #E M AR 1T
- BERRRAFNRZAZEBTRG
#75% o

FH

W
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34. RESERVES

34, FE

(a) Group

The amounts of the Group's reserves, and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the financial statements.

(b) Company

(a) =~&H
KEERANFEERER 2 FE
REZEHHEIN RV BEREK ZE

(b) =27
Share Share
premium  Contributed option  Accumulated
account surplus reserve losses Total

RivifEk — ESRG BEEGR  ZRER it
HK000  HK$000  HKS000  HKF0OO  HK§'000
TAL TAL TATL TAL TR

At T April 2006 RZZZRENA-A - 3,085 457 (44,697) (41,155)
Shares issued on the Open Offer BORBEERT RN 27292 - - - 27292
Conversion of the convertible notes SHTBRRER 20,106 - - - 20,106
Share options exercised REMTEZ

during the year BiRE 602 - (152) - 450
Share issue expenses RirgaHz (1,765) - - - (1,765)
Loss for the year TEEBR - - - (3817) (3817)
At 31 March 2007 RZBB+E-A=1-H

and 1 April 2007 RZEE+EMA-A 46,235 3,085 305 (48,514) 1111
Conversion of the convertible notes SHTBRRER 139,130 - - - 139,130
Share options exercised REMTEZ

during the year BiRE 1,206 - (305) - 901
Loss for the year TEEBR - - - (5142) (5,142)
At 31 March 2008 R-FF/\E=f=1-A 186,571 3,085 - (536%) 136000
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35. ZFERERBRMTEE

(a) Major non-cash transactions

The Group had the following major non-cash

transactions during the years ended 31 March 2007
and 2008:

0,

(i)

(iii)

V)

During the year, Xin Procurement declared and
approved an interim dividend of approximately
HK$11,429,000 (2007: HK$36,236,000), of
which HK$2,857,000 (2007: HK$17,757,000)
was payable to the Group’s minority
shareholder, which was settled through an
amount due to the minority shareholder.

On 17 January 2008, conversion of principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 of the New Vision
Century Notes were made by Global Wealthy,
which did not result in any cash flows. The
conversion resulted in a decrease of the
liability component of the convertible note by
HK$25,767,000.

On 18 September and 8 November 2007, two
conversions in an aggregate principal amount of
HK$50,000,000 of the New Convertible Notes
were made by the Subscribers and the New
Subscribers, which did not result in any cash
flows. The conversions resulted in a decrease of
the liability component of the convertible note
by HK$41,975,000.

On 18 September 2007, conversion of principal
amount of HK$40,000,000 of the New Vision
Century Notes were made by Vision Century,
which did not result in any cash flows. The
conversion resulted in a decrease of the
liability component of the convertible note by
HK$33,528,000.

(@ TE*EEXH
REBEE_TETLFRZZTTNF
—A=+—BLFERN AEEZ
ETUTEEZIHRERZSH

() A Xin Procurement® Ik &
HEfE A ARAR B 4911,429,000/%
T (ZZEZTEF 136,236,000
BIL) - EH 2,857,000 T
(ZZEZLF 117,757,000
) RENAEE 2 DB
R WiEBENDERFEHIE
ZHAZNT o

(iD R—ZTEN&E—A++8 -
Global Wealthy2 # 773 K& A&
% ¥130,000,000/% 7T 2 ¥ #)
Vision CenturyZ & 5 # » I
BENAERBEENE -  HiRE
BMARREBRZEBD DR
125,767,000/ 7T

(i) RZZEZELFALA+NBEK
+—ANB  REARFRE
ADETMRSRADBEE
50,000,000/ JT 2 %1 #) 7 12
B =9 5 0 3 4 E BT (3R
EME AMEHAIMKRER
2 BB 41,975,000/
e

vy RZEZE+F A +NH
Vision CenturyE # 17 % & A&
% #40,000,000/% 7T Z 1 #)
Vision CenturyZ & & ¥ - I
BEFMAMELTE - Hing
BABmEREBE BB DS R
433,528,000/ 7T °
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued)

35. ZERERE KM (F)

(a) Major non-cash transactions (continued)

V)

(vi)

(vii)

In July 2007, two conversions in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$17,000,000 of the
Old Vision Century Note were made by
Vision Century and three independent third
parties, which did not result in any cash flows.
The conversions resulted in a decrease of
the liability component of the convertible
note by HK$14,212,000 and an increase in
other payables and accruals by HK$57,000,
representing the unpaid interest accrued to
the portion of the Old Vision Century Note
converted.

On 17 April 2007, conversion of principal
amount of HK$7,126,560 of the HCSPL Note
were made by HCSPL, which did not result
in any cash flows. The conversion resulted in
a decrease of the liability component of the
convertible note by HK$5,899,000.

In March 2007, two conversions in an aggregate
principal amount of HK$20,000,000 of the
Old Vision Century Note were made by Vision
Century, which did not result in any cash
flows. The conversions resulted in a decrease
of the liability component of the convertible
note by HK$16,018,000 and an increase in
other payables and accruals by HK$85,000,
representing the unpaid interest accrued to
the portion of the Old Vision Century Note
converted.

@) TEHFBREXH (H)

)

(vi)

WRZZEZELF £ A Vision
CenturyR Z & B £ =
BE#ETMASRAS B
17,000,000/ 7T Z & #Vision
CenturyEERH B - T &S
BEMEERE - ABMEBH
ATRBRER2EBBIHD
14,212,0007% 7T LA K2 H A & f+f
AR 7 N FE AT SR IR IR A157,00078
7T ME R B KB E #Vision
CenturyZE & & 5 2 E 5T R T
FIE -

RZZEZEELFHA++EH
HCSPLE # 1T ¥ kK & &
7,126,5607%8 7L Z HCSPLE & i
BOUESHAMRESRE -
Ha B mREBCER
=458 45,899,000/ JT °

(i) RZZF L HF = H - Vision

CenturyB TR X P KA ®
# %820,000,000/% 7T Z & )
Vision CenturyZS= & H 42 - I &
BEYEARERE - AREH
AMBREEZEBBD LD
16,018,000 7T LA K2 H fth & 1
AR 7 I 8 5t 3R IR 48 HN85,000
B o HERELBED
Vision CenturyR & &0 9 2 fE&T
RITFE ©
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW
STATEMENT (continued) 35. mERERERME (E)

(@) TEFREXH (H)

(a) Major non-cash transactions (continued)

(viii) On 28 February 2007, the Group acquired an
additional 24% interest in Xin Procurement
and the rights of and benefits in a
shareholders’ loan of S$120,000 (equivalent to
HK$618,000) from HCSPL at a consideration
of HK$7,126,560. The consideration of the
acquisition was settled by issuing the HCSPL
Note of principal amount of HK$7,126,560 by
the Company to HCSPL.

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries

On 28 November 2007, the Company entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with Giant Gain Group
Limited, an independent third party, to dispose of
(i) its 100% equity interest in the entire issued
share capital of Hung Cheong Holdings Limited
("HCHL"), the then wholly-owned subsidiary, and
its subsidiaries (collectively known as “HC Group”);
and (ii) the benefit of and the interest in a loan
of approximately HK$28,500,000 owed by HCHL
to the Company, at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$25,508,000 (the "Disposal”).
Details of the transaction were summarised in the
Company’s announcement dated 28 November
2007 and the Company's circular dated 12
December 2007. The Disposal was completed on 30
November 2007.

(vm) —ZEEELF_A=ZTAN

R E mHCSPLU B

Xin Procurement 2 8 4M24%

= N IR R B 50120,0003 7T

(£ 7 618,000/8 7T) 2 1#

A X F = - KB R7,126,560

B -WEFETEZRER

AN QA [AHCSPLE 1T A & 8

7,126,560/% JT ZHCSPLE &
SEN

(b) HEKEAT

RZZEZLF+—-—A=Z+N\B"
N/ 7] #iGiant Gain Group Limited
(RBIUE=F)ILEEWHZ - X
i & () A M Hung Cheong Holdings
Limited ([HCHL]) - RERK —HA 2
BB A F RHCHLZ Kt 8 2 7 (4%
BIHCER]) 2 2 MRAER + &
(i) HCHLE R AR Bl 2 B2 Mz
K #E# & $£4928,500,000/ TT
#X (B 425,508,000/8 7T ([HE S
B -BAXSGzHBEEHIRN
Eﬁﬂﬁ_ﬁitiﬂ'—ﬂ_—f—)\ﬁ
ZARRB RN RARBZETLF
+= ﬂ+ HZARBEK - HE
ZEHER-_ZTZEZ+F+—A=+H
TERK o

I\H’HIHUHJJHJH
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35. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT (continued)

35.

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

FERSRERME ()

(b) HEMWE2TF (&)

2008 2007
—ZEENF —ETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
Net assets disposed of: EEHEEFE -
Investment properties (note 14) KREME (ME14) 19,532 -
Prepaid land lease payments FES + 3030 & KT8
(note 15) (FFaE15) 33,035 -
Prepayments, deposits and FENFIE - EBe Rk
other receivables H A & U BR K 114 -
Cash and bank balances W e RIRITAEER 7 -
Accounts payable FERTERR (1,831) -
Other payables and accruals o Ath FE A BR SRS B R T RE (23,077) —
Bank borrowing HRITIE X (8,474) -
19,306 -
Exchange fluctuation reserve ERBEY
realised EEN R (1,656) -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEME ARz W
(note 5) (P 3E5) 4,562 -
22,212 -
Satisfied by: XAAE
Cash " 25,508 -
Less: Expenses directly attributable 8 : HE&EH B A A
to the disposal of BEREEN
subsidiaries fl (3,296) -
22,212 -
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35 RERERE R (F)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash
equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries
is as follows:

(b) HEHKBAT (&)

RHENBRARAZASELEAESE
BEVMRANFEITMT

36. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

36. EEHEHA

At 31 March 2008, time deposits of HK$48,256,000
were pledged to a bank for issuing a letter of credit of
HK$48,048,000 (2007: Nil) to a supplier of the Group
for purchase of inventories (note 38).

2008 2007

—BEBNF —ETLEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT FAET

Cash consideration BeRE 25,508 -

Cash and bank balances FTEEHE R =
disposed of RITAS R ) - —
Expenses directly attributable  H & W E A A —

to the disposal of HEEN e
subsidiaries Fi sz (3,296) -
|
Net inflow of cash and cash ~ HEWB AR Z pa—
equivalents in respect of ReERBSEED .
the disposal of subsidiaries MAFER 22,205 - —
—
L.
p—

Details of the Group’s bank borrowings, which were
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note
27 to the financial statements.

R-BENF=A=+—R0 THEX
48,256,000 w2 I ¥ — M E 17

NERZRTHAEBBEFEHA
48,048,000 L (ZEZ L F 1 ) 2
ERETAEE — Bt ER (MiE38) -

AEBUAREEEEFERERZRITER
2GSRI R 27 -

T
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37. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

37 REBPNZH

The Group leases certain of its office properties under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for the properties
are negotiated for terms of one to two years.

At 31 March 2008, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

AEERBEERERHEE LS TR
AENE - REENEABZBBRA—
EEp

RZZZNEF=ZA=+—H  x%£ER
BAAREELEHEEAN T FHA
MZRREEHESHRBLBLT

Group
REE
2008 2007
—2E2N\F —ET+F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TR
Within one year —FR 1,372 583
In the second to fifth years, F_EERF
inclusive (BREREMF) 1,413 430
2,785 1,013

At 31 March 2007, pursuant to various agreements
entered into between the Group and an independent
third party in Mainland China, the Group was required to
pay an annual fee of HK$126,000 in respect of the Land
classified as prepaid land lease payments of the Group in
Mainland China, with a carrying value of HK$26,354,000
at 31 March 2007, commencing from calendar year 2008
up to calendar year 2048 with a 20% increment for
every five years (note 15).

R_ZBEZL+E=F=+—08  BEAE
EHEFEAE —BBLE=FIEZ
Z2HEGE  AEEARAEERLEREAKX
Beva THE L F 512600058
AT R T EE ==+ —
H 2 BRI {& 526,354,000/ 7T * L #
—EEN\FRE_ZENN\FILt BRF
FAEIE A1200% (HFE15) °
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38. COMMITMENTS 38. &I
At 31 March 2008, the Group had a contractual RZZEZENF=ZA=+—H KEEZ
commitment in respect of the purchase of inventories of G R EE S R B 17 548,584,000/ 7T
HK$48,584,000 (2007: HK$1,048,000). —TT L4 1,048,000 70) °
The Company did not have any other significant RZZEZNF=ZA=+—H ' AQF
commitments as at 31 March 2008 (2007: Nil). WREMNAEMEREE(ZSZLF —_
;) o
39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 39. BREALRS
Save as disclosed elsewhere in these financial RN AT RERE M FTREEIN
statements, the Group also had the following related AEEBREEZE_ZEZTLFR_ZTTNF
party transactions for the years ended 31 March 2007 ZSA=+—HLEFERBATHEREA
and 2008: TXR5: —
(@) On 20 February 2004, the Group entered into a @ RZZEZTWF-_A=-+H K& "
shareholders’ agreement (the “Xin Procurement EE-EEMMETMALZE )
Agreement”) with HCSPL, a company incorporated PR X RIHCSPLET 7 — 15 IR R 1 &% T —
in Singapore with limited liability, to form Xin (I'Xin Procurementi# i |) » LA —_—
Procurement in Singapore with limited liability. BRI MEFMA Y 2 BR I
HCSPL is wholly-owned by New Century ’&7— Xin Procurement ¢ HCSPL
International Pte. Ltd. (“New Century International”), ThERFME MK L 2 BRA A '
a company incorporated in Singapore with limited New Century International Pte. Ltd. e —
liability. New Century International is in turn wholly- ([ New Century International ) & —
owned by the parents of Mr. Wilson Ng and Mr. Ng E¥EA  New Century International
Wee Keat, both of whom are executive directors of Al EEREERERGELE (M '
the Company and also directors of HCSPL. Pursuant 19 /AN A & #17 & F RHCSPL _—
to the Xin Procurement Agreement, the Group and EF)REB2EHE - -BE [
HCSPL owned 51% and 49% of equity interests in Xin Procurementi &% * A& B & I
Xin Procurement, respectively. On 28 February 2007, HCSPL% Bl # BXin Procurement

the Group acquired an additional 24% interest in
Xin Procurement and the rights of and benefits in
a shareholders’ loan of S$120,000 (equivalent to
HK$618,000) from HCSPL at a consideration of
HK$7,126,560 (the “Acquisition”). The consideration
of the Acquisition was settled by issuing the HCSPL
Note of the principal amount of HK$7,126,560
by the Company to HCSPL. Upon completion of
the Acquisition, the Group holds 75% interest in
Xin Procurement and HCSPL holds the remaining
25% interest. The Acquisition constituted a very
substantial acquisition under the Listing Rules.
Details of the Acquisition have been disclosed in the
Company's circular dated 29 January 2007.

2510 Kk49% AEZR - N =T
TE+F-_A=-F+N\H AEEMW
HCSPLUs B 7 Xin ProcurementZ
EHHN240%0 1 25 & & B E 3£120,000
:;EZTE (*ﬁwﬁéG]S,OOO/ﬁE) ijzé
A EFzm - RER7,126,560%
T (TEEE]D - KREFEZR
B H A QA AHCSPLE 1T A4 58
7,126,560/ ;L ZHCSPLE # %
o RIIESEHETKE - AEBF
AXin ProcurementZ 75%7# %5 ¢ M
HCSPLE 5 B E £ T25% % &= 1R
B EMMRE - R ETEEK —TEIE
BEAKESE WHSHEHE
ER—_ZEZ+F—A=-+NABZ
A BBH AR -
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) On 20 February 2004, Xin Procurement entered into

©

a supply agreement (the “Supply Agreement”) with
HCSPL whereby Xin Procurement was appointed
as a supplier of HCSPL for the supply of certain
office equipment and office supplies, machinery,
machinery parts, lubricating oil and bunkerage
for vessels. The Supply Agreement remains valid
after the change of the Group's interest in Xin
Procurement on 28 February 2007. By virtue of
the interests of the parents of Mr. Wilson Ng and
Mr. Ng Wee Keat, who had been the directors of
the Company for the period from 1 April 2007 to
20 November 2007, in HCSPL, the transactions
contemplated under the Supply Agreement
constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Sale of office equipment and office supplies were
made at the price equivalent to 10/9 times the
cost incurred by the Group. Sale of machinery,
parts, stores for the upkeeping of vessels, necessary
victuals for the crew, lubricating oil and bunkerage
for the operation of the vessels and appointment of
surveyors and technical consultants for the vessels
were made at the price equivalent to 100/98 times
the cost incurred by the Group. During the year, Xin
Procurement made sales to HCSPL amounting to
HK$3,000 (2007: HK$2,791,000).

Pursuant to the Xin Procurement Agreement, HCSPL
had advanced funds to Xin Procurement as working
capital and the loan from HCSPL was HK$644,000
as at 31 March 2007. The Group has fully repaid
the loan to HCSPL during the year. The terms of
the advance are set out in note 28 to the financial
statements.

39. EEEALRS (&)

b) RZZFEZTWE_H=+H " Xin

©

ProcurementEEHCSPLET 37 — 17
FEHaE (T ERZELD - B - Xin
Procurementi2 % Z (£ AHCSPL{#
EETHAZERERRAERAM
R ERHE RS G
Heom &R 2 (e o HIEmE RN
—EEHF A+ N\BEAE
B 7 Xin Procurement # % &
BATARBR - BIZ LA AIE14A
T OEREEREEREEGLE
(HER_ZEZTLFWA—HZZ
ZE+FE+— A - +tHHFMET
RRABEFR) 2 REPHCSPLZ #
W BEHERZRETIZSE
RARNR ZHEBRERS -

HWERLAERBERBLAERARZ
BRESNRAEEELEZRAZ
10,/9F - SHEHREFH B Z2BFE
HIERB 2 HE - SHRME:
HERFHREEMRBRMENE
ZHGLA HARKE : URA
ROF St & BB 2 AT & BT BE R
ZEBBBEERRNEBFTESZK
A2Z2100/98F - R AFER -
Xin Procurement@HCSPLZ §4 &
BAR3,0008 T (ZETLF
2,791,000 7T) °

R 4EXin Procurementi? 3%  HCSPL
A E S FXin ProcurementfE & &
BEARA RZEZ+F=HA=*+—
H - HCSPLIE f 2 B X /644,000
BL-FRN AEBEEE2HEEX
B E R FTHCSPL « B30 Z & RE RN
BA S R BT 5128 o
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39. FEEALRZ (E)

(d)

Q)

®

®

(h)

0]

During the year, Xin Procurement repaid
HK$21,200,000 to HCSPL (2007: HCSPL made
an advance of HK$2,857,000 to Xin Procurement).
At 31 March 2008, the outstanding balance
owed by Xin Procurement to HCSPL amounted to
HK$34,255,000 (2007: HK$48,241,000), including
dividend payable of HK$20,614,000 (2007:
HK$17,757,000) which is unsecured, interest-free
and has no fixed terms of repayment.

During the year, a management fee of HK$636,000
(2007: HK$600,000) was charged by HCSPL in
respect of certain administrative services rendered
to the Group. The management fee was determined
between the Group and HCSPL.

During the year, HCSPL reimbursed HK$208,000
(2007: HK$420,000) to the Group in respect of
certain administrative expenses paid by the Group
on behalf of HCSPL.

During the year, the Group reimbursed expenses of
HK$81,000 (2007: HK$43,000) to HCSPL in respect
of certain administrative expenses paid by HCSPL on
behalf of the Group.

During the year, HCSPL did not make payment
(2007: HK$1,584,000) to the Group's suppliers on
behalf of the Group in respect of its purchases of
office equipment and office supplies, machinery,
machinery parts, lubricating oil and bunkerage.

During the year, Huang Procurement, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of HCSPL, paid HK$41,121,000
(2007: HK$36,206,000) to certain of the Group's
suppliers on behalf of the Group in respect of its
purchases of office equipment and office suppliers,
machinery, machinery parts, lubricating oil and
bunkerage.

(d)

O)

®

®

(h)

0]

RAEEZR - Xin Procurement(& i&
21,200,000/ 7t THCSPL (== =&
+ % : HCSPL# £2,857,000/% 7T
FXin Procurement) o ;¥ —ZZ /|
F£=H=+—H - Xin Procurement
ERHCSPLZ M A BEEH A
34,255,000 L (ZE T 4§
48,241,000 7T) * BIEEMKE
20,614,000 T (ZE T 4 :
17,757,000 7T) * 2 £ 5k 18 Ty &
R REREETEENRE -

FRHCSPLBL IR FAEB 2 &
T & 12 R % W ELE 12 #636,00078
T (ZZZ 4 : 600,000/ L)
FHEERESRAEEMEHCSPLE

=

IE °

F A - HCSPLBL A & [# X &RHCSPL
TR zETFIBRAIAARNEEE
E208,000 L (Z =T L F
420,000/ 7T) °

FRAEERHCSPLRRAE R
T 2HFITHRAX AHCSPLE
B 81,0008 (ZE T F
43,0008 7L) °

F A HCSPLIE M g 7~ 5 [ i & It
NRERBERPAERM - 2R %
W R R RERAEE
mMAEBEHERZNEMMKIE(Z
TE L 11,584,000 7T) °

FRN HCSPLZZEMWE R A
Huang Procurementst 7~ & & i
EWAETRBERBAETAL - #
BOEEMTH - EBRRE R
KASERAKEEE THERX
41,121,0008 T (ZE T L 5F
36,206,000 7T) °

2008
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T Y]
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

0)

Q)

0)

Xin Procurement has provided a corporate guarantee
to a bank in respect of banking facilities granted
to HCSPL of principal amount up to S$9,860,000
(equivalent to HK$56,202,000). As at 31 March
2008, HCSPL did not utilise the banking facilities
(2007: Nil).

During the year, the Company deposited
HK$50,000,000 (2007: Nil) into a securities trading
account newly opened with GT Capital for securities
trading purpose. During the year ended 31 March
2008, securities trading charges of HK$485,000
(2007: Nil) was paid to GT Capital and interest
income of HK$30,000 (2007: Nil) was received
from the cash deposited with GT Capital. At 31
March 2008, the carrying amount of investments
at fair value through profit or loss maintained in
the securities trading account with GT Capital was
HK$5,340,000 and the cash deposited with GT
Capital was HK$1,095,000 (note 22(i)).

During the year ended 31 March 2007, Huang
Worldwide Holding Limited, the immediate holding
company of Vision Century, has undertaken to the
Company, to provide continuing financial support to
the Group so as to enable the Group to continue
its day-to-day operations as a viable going concern
notwithstanding any present or future financial
difficulties experienced by the Group.

39. EEEALRS (&)

0)

Q)

M

Xin Procurement® FEHCSPLE % 74X
& %8 & £9,860,000% 7t (HE R
56,202,000 7T) Z RITELE M —
MIRITIREAFTER - RZZEZN
F=ZA=+—H HCSPLI EEFH
FMRITRE(ZTTLF &) -

RAFERN - A2 R 50,000,000
BLT(ZETEF - BB)FALES
EeRIHAYIIBELERZIER
LEBHEBEZRBE BEZTZEN
F=ZA=+—HILFE BHEH
£ 485,000 70 (ZZE T L F -
EIEXNTaEed YEXTE
MR EE € R 2R & WEF B ik
A30,0008B L (ZEELF &) -
R-_ZEENEFEZA=Z+—H &5
ECREARGEPHIFAZER
BaZATEBEZRENER
{8 55,340,000 7L ' T F A &
Eo R 2 IRE 51,095,000 7T (M
F£22(30)) °

BE_ZTZLF=A=+—H
LIEF [E » Vision CenturyZ B ¥ 1%
% A AlHuang Worldwide Holding
LimitedB M AN R & & - S EE
BTYTAEEMEBSE  UWEAEE
EEHERMREHBERZMBER
By (DREBE B EEERNA
1T FRBEAE -
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39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 39. EEREALR S (H)
(m) Compensation of key management personnel of the (m) XEEZFTEZEREXEFHM
Group:
2008 2007
—EENE ZETLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Short term employee benefits 2 #i{E E &7 2,223 1,340
Post-employment benefits BEB 212 A 95 52
Total compensation paid to key XN FEEERE
management personnel KB 2 EifasE 2,318 1,392
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included EREFEMe v E—PHBEH —
in note 8 to the financial statements. ISV EEETE R ———
|
-
—
=
-
|
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the balance sheet date are as

40.

BEEANE D 2EMT A

REEARBESRIAZERENT :

follows:
Group &
Financial assets CMEAE
2008 2007
“BEN\F ZEELF
Financial assets Financial assets
at fair value at fair value
through profit through profit
or loss or loss
Loans and held for Loans and held for
receivables trading Total  receivables trading Total
BRBRR BRERR
APEEDR AFEEIR
ERR Z&REE BNk ZemEE
EYER -HEEE At YRR —FHEEE EH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TET TET FHET FAT TET
Accounts receivable EWEER 36,468 = 36,468 75,869 - 75,869
Other receivables H R R 322 - 322 120 - 120
Loan receivable EWER 8,000 - 8,000 - - -
Due from related I
companies FE 1,204 - 1,204 - - -
Investments at fair value BBEBRENTEE
through profit or loss ~ FIBE 2 & - 5,340 5,340 - - -
Pledged deposits BHEHER 48,256 - 48,256 - - -
Cash and cash He ke
equivalents ZEw 186,285 - 186,285 29,255 - 29,255
280,535 5,340 285,875 105,244 - 105,244




40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

Financial liabilities
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40. REHIE S 2 BT A (H)
ERMAE

2008 2007
—EENFE TETAF
Financial liabilities  Financial liabilities

at amortised cost  at amortised cost

LA 88 P A 5T B IABE SR ANET &

ZEMEE Ze@MBE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FHET
Accounts and bills payable FERTBR SR R PRI 1% 6,884 21,019
Other payables H At E T BR K - 349
Interest-bearing bank borrowings & ERITE R - 12,079
Loan from a minority shareholder — —f7 D> E R RIBH 2 B - 644 —_—
Due to a minority shareholder JES — L D B iR R FIE 34,255 48,241 ——
Due to a related company FET—EBE R RIFIR - 18
Convertible notes AR RS R 69,074 19,536 N—
-
110,213 101,886 S .
—
L
p—
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)

40.

40. RERIEI S 2 & T A ()

Company VNN
Financial assets SREE
2008 2007
“2ENE e
Financial assets Financial assets
at fair value at fair value
through profit through profit
or loss or loss
Loans and held for Loans and held for
receivables trading Total receivables trading Total
BRARR BRRRE
ATEENE RTEEIR
ERR  ZEREE ERRk  ZeBEE
ERES -HHEEER At RYES  —HEEE ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THL THERL TARL ThEL TiEn T
Due from subsidiaries R ERRAITE 56,440 - 56,440 8,114 - 8,114
Due from a related el —BEE AT
company A 1,095 - 1,095 - - -
Investments at fair value FRBREATER
through profit or loss S8R 2 RE - 5,340 5,340 - - -
Cash and bank balances BeREER 181,976 - 181,976 24,827 - 24,827
239,511 5,340 244,851 32,941 - 32,941
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40. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued) 40. REHIE S 2SR T A ()
Financial liabilities =R
2008 2007
—BEBN\F —TETLF
Financial liabilities  Financial liabilities
at amortised cost  at amortised cost
LIS AT B A SERAR T 8
ZEMBE o XY=
HK$'000 HK$'000 —_—
FTERT FET —_—
Due to a subsidiary FE A~ — IR B A RIZK IR 15,827 -
Other payables At JE T BR R - 6
Convertible notes QEAEES 69,074 19,536
84,901 19,542 D—
e
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND e
POLICIES 41. BBEABREEBEREE —
The Group's principal financial instruments comprise rEBZFESHIAEBER® RIRIT _
cash and bank balances, short term time deposits, Her - RETEHTER  FTRRTER
interest-bearing bank borrowings, loan from a minority —fOHRRE‘RZER - B
shareholder, amount due to a minority shareholder and BRRFELRITRERER - tES@IT '
convertible notes. The main purpose of these financial BEFZEMDARAEEEEEE - K —
instruments is to raise finance for the Group's operations. EEAEEEEMERMEERERE  Him -
The Group has various other financial assets and liabilities EWERRENERRENER  ME
such as accounts receivable and accounts and bills EEENAELERES -
payable, which arise directly from its operations.
The main risks arising from the Group's financial TEBERMmIAEEECFERBAFX —
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, k- INERK - EERR - RBES _
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board Ebe REEERER EEZ2HMALIH —
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these RERZTRAR R REMMAT -
risks and they are summarised below.
Interest rate risk FiE 7 B

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's bank
balances and time deposits with original maturity ranging
from 1 month to 6 months. As at 31 March 2008,
the Group had no interest-bearing bank borrowings.
Therefore, any future variations in interest rates will
mainly lead to change in interest income of the Group.

AREEAZ ZWSNE KB ERTEH
RASEZRITEHRRBHENF—
BAERNEANEZEMER - R_F
ZNF=ZA=1+—H *EELEF L
RITER - AUt - BIRF R 2 (E ] K ED
HEBEEHAEENBUWAZE -
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

41. BERBEEREERBE (E)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures in RMB
and Singapore dollars. Such exposures arise from the
Group's procurement business. During the years ended
31 March 2008 and 31 March 2007, the Group did not

issue any financial instruments for hedging purposes.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change in
the foreign exchange rates, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit/(loss) before tax and
equity (due to changes in the fair value of monetary

assets and liabilities).

IME B B
AEBEHARBRFNELZRS
BEERR ZERBRREEAEEZRE
(¥% - -REBE_ZEZEN\F=A=+—H
F_EEHFZAZF+—RULEEFEER-
AEBWEBEEFE MBI EMN SR
TH-

TRETREEARMERRETE -
T 40 O S5 A B 1R & BB B 2 1R
T AEEBBADER, (FR) Rgs
(REMAERARATEEHRED)
R B B -

Increase
in loss
before tax
Increase in and decrease
exchange rate in equity
BBt A &5 18 38 hn
EEXLH R
HK$'000
TR
2008
—2ENF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against Singapore dollar 5% -
TR IR T (E
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB N/A N/A
BT ARERE AN B AN
2007
—TTLHF
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against Singapore dollar 5% 558
fir B TR TR (B
If Hong Kong dollar weakens against RMB 5% 661

BT ARBRE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
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B35 B B IR B AR R BUR ()

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group's policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group's
exposure to bad debts is not significant. For transactions
that are not denominated in the functional currency
of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not
offer credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control. The credit risk of the Group’s
other financial assets, which comprise cash and cash
equivalents, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from accounts receivable
and loan receivable are disclosed in notes 19 and 21 to
the financial statements.

=EmER
$%@RﬁﬁTﬁ%%ﬂ%Z%Zﬁ§
cARBIHEAFTEREENET
TEZ%ﬁEﬁﬁMLﬁEﬁ& k
Frelbdh - BURBR SR VIR KT R
BEE $$l2i%H&ITiﬁ
A IFUEBEE LB 2 e EHHE
ZRPME  AEBREEFEEET
ERHIHEZBERATREEESR - EAX
SEEpEREE (BRREMAEF
B MELEZEERRME @ A&E
ZEERBRAHTEOMEL &R
RESFNZETAZKHEE -

HRAKERERAMEBEAIREZE=
RS WBAREERR -

rEBREBRESLEBUERZEE
[ B 2 AF A0 B B EE N B RS IR M R
19521 °

2008

FH

Muuwm
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued) 41. BEEREEEERBE (&)
Liquidity risk HEBEZEE

The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds using
a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool considers the
maturity of both its financial instruments and financial
assets (e.g., accounts receivable) and projected cash
flows from operations.

The Group's objective is to ensure adequate funds to
meet commitments associated with its financial liabilities.
Cash flows are closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities
as at the balance sheet date, based on the contracted
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

AEBENBRABHE TAEREES
RERER ZTAZRSBMTARES R
BE (Pl : YR MENEIHA Kk
BRAREXRBZRERE -

AEEZBEREREEHNESIARN
HESMBERBZAE AEEREF
BRETYEZRERE -

RIBCRIARBEIRER - ATHIIAE
ERsERzemBEsMe

Group r&E
2008
—BEN\F
Less than 3t0 12 Over

On demand 3 months months 1 year Total

EEX iy =Rz
Hig =f8A +=fA BiB—-F a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT TER TER TER T
Accounts and bills payable ERERRENEZE - 6,884 - - 6,884
Due to a minority shareholder ~ FEff—fI &R R A 34,255 - - - 34,255
Convertible notes ABRREER - - - 80,000 80,000
34,255 6,884 - 80,000 121,139
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4. B REBREEBEREE (&)
REELREE (&)

2007
3
Less than 31012 Over
On demand 3 months months 1 year Total
JEEK LR = EES
BE =R +=fEA BA—F CH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL FiET T TET FET
Accounts and bills payable EERTRENEE - 21,019 - - 21,019
Other payables Ef TR - 349 - - 349
Interest-bearing bank SRR
borrowings fEa - 1,729 3,600 6,750 12,079
Loan from a minority —fr L BRI
shareholder ZER 644 - - - 644
Due to a minority shareholder  FE(f—fi D &R FE 48241 - - - 48241
Due to a related company e —FREEARE 18 - - - 18
Convertible notes HRRER - - - 24,127 24,127
48,903 23,097 3,600 30,877 106,477

2008

FH

i

1]
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

41. BERBEBREERBE (E)

Liquidity risk (continued) HEBEZEE (F)
Company AN
2008
—EENE
Less than 3to 12 Over
On demand 3 months months 1 year Total
EZX PR ZERZE
HE =f8A +=f@A BE-F CE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THER THER THER TET
Due to a subsidiary JEN—RMERRHE 15,827 - - - 15,827
Convertible notes TRRER - - - 80,000 80,000
15,827 - - 80,000 95,827
2007
—ZTLHEF
Less than 3t0 12 Over
Ondemand 3 months months 1 year Total
JEZK S =EAZE
E& =1aA TZ1EA HiA—F G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THER THET THT TR THER
Other payables HitEAIES - 6 - - 6
Convertible notes HRREE - - - 24,127 24,127
- 6 - 24127 24,133
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued) 41. BHEREREBERBE (E)
Equity price risk R EB % EE
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity P& (B 15 [ B2 A2 4 AR 48 8K 7 2 M
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels EFEEEDMERNREESF R FE
of equity indices and the value of individual securities. THeRER R_ZEENF=ZA=+—
The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from B AEEMESOREERRRRE
individual equity investments classified as trading equity DEAFIEFEERERENER LK
investments (note 23) as at 31 March 2008. The Group's RRE (M5E23) - AEEH EH R
listed investments are listed on the Main Board of The Tﬁﬁﬁ’\%\% e RXHMARAR LT -
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and are valued at REE BRI mEFE -

quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to TRETREME B BRI E RARGTHE
every 10% decrease in the fair values of the equity MRETET RELERERGEA
investments, with all other variables held constant ZHEEE HRERECATEESTY
and before any impact on tax, based on their carrying IR 10%% B 2 BURE

amounts at the balance sheet date.

Carrying amount Increase
of equity in loss Decrease
investments before tax in equity
IRFERE Z AREE R AT RS 0 ey
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TAT TR

2008 —sENE

Investments at fair value  BEiBIBRILZ A FEE
through profit or loss SRR & 5,340 534 534

FH

|\\\HHHIJHJJHJHHHH
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41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management
is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders,
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes during the years ended 31 March 2008 and
31 March 2007.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which
is total debt divided by the capital plus total debt. The
Group's policy is to maintain the gearing ratio of no
more than 1. Total debt includes interest-bearing bank
borrowings, loan from a minority shareholder and the
liability component of the convertible notes. Capital
includes total equity. The gearing ratios as at the balance
sheet dates were as follows:

1. MBEREREEBRERBEK (#)

BEXEHE
AEEEAER T ERBRABRAS
BARNEFELEEHTZRAUNZER
HERBREREALRUXFEEBLRS
BREE-

AEBRBEEGRTZE(CERER
REBAIMARE - REFHNBRERE
B AKRETHBEBRRZIKE - AR
REBERNKBITHR RBE_FTT
NF=ZA=+—BER-_ZETLF=H
=t—BUEFER FRER BERR
MBI EHREY -

AEBEMBERNBBELRREEEN
ERBELEABERBERAELRNE
BREBE -AEEZHRRABEABEL
REFNTEB - AERBRBRTR
RITER - —PBRRERZER
RABRREZEBHD - EXRBEE
mARER - NEEAZEXRARBLRIMT
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued) . BHRBEE R ERBUR (#)
Capital management (continued) EXEE (HF)
Group rEH
2008 2007
—BEN\F —ETTLF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHER FAET
Interest-bearing bank borrowings 5T ERITER - 12,079
Loan from a minority shareholder ~ —fz > #AE R IR 2 B - 644
Convertible notes, the liability AMRER - &%
component Eii52) 69,074 19,536
Total debt [YEEGE 69,074 32,259
Total equity HRER 177,171 38,753
Capital and total debt BEARKREERE 246,245 71,012
Gearing ratio BARBELX 0.28 0.45
42. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS #ER ?&%IE
(a) On 30 April 2008, 64,120,000 share options were (a) RZZEZENFWNA=+H-
granted to certain staff, directors and consultants of 64,120, OOOT\E§HXEE 2 & % ZIS’A
the Company. Further details are disclosed in note AAETEE EFREE-

(b)

©

33 to the financial statements.

On 7 May 2008 and 15 May 2008, 6,208,000 share
options in aggregate were exercised by certain staff
and consultants of the Group, at an exercise price of
HK$0.188 per share. Further details are disclosed in
note 33 to the financial statements.

On 19 May 2008 and 20 May 2008, two of the New
Subscribers converted the New Convertible Notes
in an aggregate principal amount of HK$17,000,000
at a conversion price of HK$0.28 per share, which
resulted in a total number of 60,714,285 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each being issued by the
Company.

(b)

©

Ei‘l%ﬁéﬂﬁ%i&i’%m‘ﬁuﬁéﬁé °

RZEZENFRAELARCS
NFEHA+EH & 36,208,000
NEREEHAEEETEER
R R 1T B & AR0.188 T 17
fEoE—FHFBERTBHREMTE
33 R o

RZEENFRATNHEHEZZE
ZNFRAZTH MEMRE
ANZR B E & R0.28% T LK
% 48 %817,000,000/8 7T 2 ¥ A 7]
BBREE BRG] EHITHEK
60,714,285 & i E {H0.01/& 7T 2

AR

2008

FH

HHJUJJHJH |
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42. POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS (continued)

42. #EHEEE (FE)

(d)

O)

®

©®

On 22 May 2008, Global Wealthy converted the
New Vision Century Notes in an aggregate principal
amount of HK$30,000,000 at a conversion price of
HK$0.28 per share, which resulted in a total number
of 107,142,857 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
being issued by the Company.

On 22 May 2008, Global Wealthy converted the
New Convertible Notes of HK$0.01 each in an
aggregate principal amount of HK$500,000 at
a conversion price of HK$0.28 per share, which
resulted in a total number of 1,785,714 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each being issued by the
Company.

On 26 May 2008, the Group entered into a
memorandum of understanding (“MOU") with Time
Fortune Holdings Limited (“Time Fortune”) and
Mr. Chan Yuk Charm (“Mr. Chan") in relation to
the potential acquisition of 15% equity interest in
Transwell Investments Limited (“Transwell”), a 90%
owned subsidiary of Time Fortune and the remaining
10% equity interest owned by Mr. Chan, and the
options to acquire the remaining 85% equity interest
in Transwell. Transwell is principally engaged in the
business of exploitation and extraction of oil in the
oil field located in the PRC. Further details of which
were set out in Company's announcement dated 26
May 2008.

On 15 July 2008, the board of directors of the
Company announced that it proposed to change
the official registered English name of the Company
from “Xin Corporation Limited” to “Poly Development
Holdings Limited”, which shall be subject to the
passing of a special resolution by the shareholders
of the Company at the 2008 annual general meeting
and the approval of the Registrar of Companies in
Bermuda.

43. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(d)

(e

®

R_ZENFRA-_+=-8"
Global WealthyiZ #2 % (& & }%0.28
BT R K & $2%830,000,000%
JLZ ¥THVision CenturyZ2 & - E 2
NN T (T2 80107,142,857R &
PRE{E0.01 BT 2 Bk -

RZEZENFREAZ-+Z=ZH"
Global Wealthy#z # % {€ & #%0.28
7T H AN & 48 %8500,0007%8 T 2
AR EE SRR RET
42201,785, 714K B IR E H0.01%
T EER

RZEENFRAZ+<AB
7N % & HTime Fortune Holdings
Limited ([ Time Fortune ) & & (8 &
S ([BRESE]) FT L RFH T
(I ESE] RN BE@ETE
I B Transwell Investments Limited
(I Transwell | - ATime FortuneZ
90%[K B8 2 & - B2 TS 10%% 4 &
BRAE A WEA) 1500 1 & o] I i
Transwellgk T8500/% 4 2 B 12 #E -
Transwell 3= 2 75 7 70 A B &9 ) B #
ERRERRRABEL - #E—FFH
BERAARBPAZEZENFH
ARZ+ "Bz

@ R-TZENFLA+THR ARA

ExgEmMEESAQAZER
LMt & /A [ Xin Corporation
Limited | 3 22/ [ Poly Development
Holdings Limited] = #ZE&F AR A
BRER-_ZZNFRRAEFAGHE
BEIRRENARERFTME
B HAIEER -

43. HLERMBE®|E

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 25 July 2008.

EZenX _ZZN\FLA-THBH#E
AP TG ERR AL AE T % -
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